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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

ITRBEREEENW®R DN

| would like to extend my sincere thanks to all of you for
supporting Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (formerly
Changfeng Axle (China) Company Limited) (the “Company”).
On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present you with the audited
financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an independent axle component provider for
China’s medium duty truck (“MDT”) and heavy duty truck
(“HDT”) aftermarket, and also an independent axle assembly
provider for China’s MDT and HDT original equipment
manufacturers (“OEM”) market. The Group is engaged in
the manufacture and sales of axle assemblies and axle
components in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The Group’s products cover all major axle components,
including cast steel and punched steel axle housings, brake
drums, axle shafts, axle differentials and reductors, steering
knuckles and front axle beams. An extensive range of front,
middle and rear axle assemblies and suspension assemblies
are also manufactured.

On 4 January 2015, the Group entered into an agreement
to dispose of a parcel of land and the erected factories and
other structures located in Kaifeng at an aggregate cash
consideration of RMB102,690,000, details of which are
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 4 January
2015 and the circular issued by the Company dated 5 March
2015.

On 25 March 2015, the Group diversified the existing
business to electronic commerce business by acquiring
51% equity interest in Century Network Holding Limited and
its subsidiaries from Century East Network Limited, through
the operation of a cross-border electronic distribution
platform, www.CCIGMALL.com., where the Group sources,
imports and channels authentic goods from suppliers
abroad, and then distributes and resells such goods to
domestic retailers in the PRC. In this connection, the
Company issued 122,121,212 new shares as acquisition
consideration, and 610,606,060 new shares under a
subscription agreement entered into with Century East
Network Limited, both were issued at a subscription price
of HK$0.33 per share. The proceeds of the share issues
totalling US$31.2 million were used as follows:

(i) US$5.2 million to acquire 51% equity interest in
Century Network Holding Limited.

(i)  US$26 milion (equivalent to approximately RMB160
million) as general working capital for the e-commerce
business.

The remaining proceeds have not yet been utilized and
remain available as general working capital of the Group.

Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

Due to the continued deterioration of the business
environment of the heavy duty truck market, the demand
for axle assembles has declined significantly. In addition, as
a result of continued unstable political environment in the
Commonwealth of Independent States, there has also been
great uncertainty relating to the sales of train and railway
components. In view of these circumstances, the Group
temporarily suspended the business operations of Kaifeng
Changfeng Axle Co., Ltd (“Kaifeng Changfeng”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, which was engaged in
the business of axle assembles and railway components,
details of which are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 4 September 2015. Subsequently,
on 2 February 2016, the Group entered into an agreement
to conditionally sell the entire interest in Kaifeng Changfeng
and related shareholder’s loan advanced by the Group
to Kaifeng Changfeng at a total cash consideration of
RMB4,000, details of which are disclosed in the Company’
announcement dated 2 February 2016 and the circular
dated 30 March 2016.

Axle business

The Group sells axle assemblies directly to OEMs in the
PRC on a made-to-order basis to match its customers’
specification requirements. A small portion of axle
components are occasionally sold to other axle assembly
providers. The Group is an independent axle component
provider for China’s MDT and HDT aftermarket with
diversified product offerings among independent axle
component providers in the PRC.

The axle components are sold to customers in the
aftermarket through its extensive sales, marketing and
services network across the PRC. For the year ended
31 December 2015, revenue from the OEM market and
aftermarket business segment amounted to approximately
RMB127.2 million (2014: approximately RMB336.9 million)
and accounted for approximately 75% (2014: 100%) of
the Group’s total revenue, representing a decrease of
approximately 62% as compared with 2014,

Electronic commerce business

The Group has started the electronic commerce business
since March 2015, initially through the operation of
business-to-business platform. This business-to-business
mode is to set up a direct path between pre-identified
overseas suppliers, distributors and domestic retailers in
the PRC. In this respect, the Group adopts the order driven
model in which retailers place their orders at designated
terminals through the CCIGMALL.com platform and the
orders will then be pulled together by the Group and sent
to distributors and suppliers online directly. The distributors,
upon accepting the orders and completing customers
clearance, will then deliver the goods to the retailers in the
PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

EFEHENEEENWR DM

Several agreements were entered into by the Group with
some strategic partners, including CHINAUMS (a subsidiary
of China Unionpay), Bank of China Limited, China Telecom
Bestpay E-Commerce Limited, eBay International AG,
Class Editori S.p.A, Class China e-Commerce S.r.l., etc. At
present, the Group has commenced practical businesses
with hundreds of brand suppliers in Europe, covering
thousands of brand producers, and established strategic
corporation relationships with famous brand groups such as
Scotti, IF&B, Classeditori, Carrefour, FLA and Intermarche
etc. Network resources of overseas suppliers which possess
the scale effect have strengthened the upstream strategic
advantage among the industry.

The Group has launched “XSJ Platform APP”, a business-
to-customer e-commerce platform, since September 2015.
Based on the latest information of international fashion
and lifestyle, the platform establishes a modern business
system for the import of renowned overseas brands and
prime overseas local brands. Centering on four main
themes of product categories, namely affordable luxury,
nursery, cosmetics and health, the Company has developed
cooperation with well established partners in various regions
around the world. Our professional merchandising team
carries out centralized purchasing directly from product
sources to ensure that all goods are from their countries of
origin and are authentic products.

XSJ Platform APP provides Chinese consumers with
overseas products from their countries of origin through
consolidated mailing, bonded stocking mailing and general
trading modes. It adopts a reverse-driving mode over the
supply chain that “creates demand and leads consumption”
and maximizes the precision of sales on the platform. The
most remarkable characteristics of the operation of the XSJ
Platform APP are differentiated positioning, minoritising
mass demand and precise product matching.

The Group also develops its offline O20 division. Through
the strategic alliance with Beijing Gas Group, value-added
services are extended to 5.7 million household gas users of
Beijing Gas and 141 physical 5S shops and service stations
will be gradually transformed and upgraded. This strategic
alliance will bring the display and experience of overseas
goods of XSJ Platform APP to physical shops and expand its
reach to surrounding residential and commercial areas, that
can ultimately channel offline business to our sales.

This division also sources products related to the electronic
commerce business for offline trading with a view to creating
synergy for the whole business segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue from
online and offline of electronic commerce business segment
amounted to approximately RMB6.9 million (2014: RMB Nil)
and RMB36.3 million (2014: RMB Nil), respectively. The total
revenue from this segment accounted for approximately
25% (2014: Nil) of the Group’s total revenue.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded a consolidated revenue of
approximately RMB170.4 million (2014: approximately
RMB336.9 million), representing a decrease of 49% as
compared to 2014.

Revenue from the Group’s axle business segment for the
year ended 31 December 2015 decreased by approximately
62% to RMB127.2 million (2014: RMB336.9 million). The
revenue from this segment was diminishing as a result of the
continuing depressed business environment of this sector
and the significant price competition among competitors.

Revenue from the Group’s electronic commerce segment
was RMB43.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: RMB Nil), representing approximately 25% (2014: Nil)
of the Group’s total revenue.

Gross loss

Gross loss for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted
to approximately RMB159.8 million, as compared with the
gross profit of approximately RMB6.0 million for 2014. The
gross loss was mainly attributable to RMB133.9 million
write-down of the inventories made during the year ended
31 December 2015.

Other income/(loss)

Other income of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately RMB9.5 million (2014:
other loss of approximately RMB23.9 million). This was
mainly attributable to the disposal of the land in Kaifeng.

Impairment losses

Impairment losses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to RMB312.3 million, mainly
including RMB53.7 million for property, plant and equipment
and RMB262.6 million for trade and other receivables, due
to the decline of the Group’s axle business.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015 increased to approximately
RMB45.5 million (2014 approximately RMB20.5 million).
The increase was mainly attributable to the business
diversification of electronic commerce which the Group
acquired on 25 March 2015.
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ITRBEREEENW®R DN

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2015 increased to approximately RMB86.4
million, as compared to RMB54.2 million for 2014.
The increase was mainly attributable to the business
diversification of electronic commerce which the Group
acquired on 25 March 2015 and the share-based payment
granted during the period.

Finance costs

The Group incurred finance costs of approximately
RMB48.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2015, which represented approximately 28.6% (2014:
approximately 8.7%) of its revenue. The increase in
percentage to revenue in 2015 was mainly due to finance
charges on the secured notes and convertible bonds
amounting to RMB10.4 million and RMB5.8 million
respectively and changes in fair value on the derivative
components of US$10 million convertible bonds amounting
to RMB11.2 million, as well as the significant decrease in
total revenue of the Group.

Taxation

Income tax income of approximately RMB16.3 million (2014:
approximately RMBO0.3 million) was recorded for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, cash and cash equivalents of
the Group was approximately RMB195.6 million (2014
approximately RMB6.9 million).

As compared to 2014, cash and cash equivalents increased
by approximately RMB188.8 million, which was mainly
resulted from the net cash outflow from operating activities
of approximately RMB45.1 million (2014: net cash inflow of
RMB38.4 million), the net cash inflow from investing activities
of approximately RMB57.4 million (2014: RMB97.2 million)
and net cash inflow from financing activities of approximately
RMB175.4 million (2014: net cash outflow of RMB186.6
million).

On 6 May 2015, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Chance Talent Management Limited, an
indirectly and wholly-owned special purpose vehicle of
CCB International (Holdings) Limited (the “Subscriber”), in
relation to the issue of secured notes of US$20 million and
convertible bonds in aggregate principal amount of US$10
million. On 3 June 2015, the Company issued the secured
notes and convertible bonds to the Subscriber. The secured
notes and convertible bonds bear interest at the rate of 13%
per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The secured
notes mature on 3 June 2017 and the convertible bonds
mature on 3 June 2018.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

The convertible bonds can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$1.06
per share (subject to adjustment) for the principal amount of
US$6 million and HK$1.50 per share (subject to adjustment)
for the principal amount of US$4 million. Assuming full
conversion of the convertible bonds at the initial conversion
prices at the exchange rate of US$1 = HK$7.75, a maximum
number of 64,534,590 conversion shares may be issued.

The net proceeds of approximately US$28,800,000 from the
issue of secured notes and convertible bonds were used to
finance the operating expenses arising from or in connection
with the electronic commerce business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB59.6 million (2014:
approximately RMB153.5 million). As at 31 December
2015, the current ratio (i.e. total current assets/total current
liabilities) of the Group was approximately 1.12 (2014:
approximately 1.26).

As at 31 December 2015, total assets of the Group were
approximately RMB776.1 million (2014: approximately
RMB1,017.9 million) and total liabilities were approximately
RMB704.0 million (2014: approximately RMB584.7 million).
The debt ratio as at 31 December 2015 (i.e. total liabilities/
total assets) was 0.91 as compared to 0.57 as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total borrowings
(including bank and other loans, secured notes and
convertible bonds) of approximately RMB380.6 million
(2014: approximately RMB314.1 million). The gearing ratio
(i.e. total borrowing/total equity) was approximately 5.28
(2014: approximately 0.72).

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2015 were approximately RMB49.5 million (2014:
RMB349.3 million). The decrease in balance was mainly due
to the decrease in revenue and the impairment loss made
during the year.

Inventories

The inventory balance of the Group as at 31 December 2015
was approximately RMB63.6 million (2014: approximately
RMB188.2 million). The decrease was mainly due to write-
down made on inventories.
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis
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Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables of the Group as at 31 December
2015 were approximately RMB150.9 million (2014:
approximately RMB246.5 million). The decrease was mainly
due to (i) the decrease in deposits received for the disposal
of assets classified as held-for-sale and subsidiaries; (ii)
the decrease in payables for construction and purchase of
property, plant and equipment and (i) the decrease in trade
and bills payables.

Pledged assets

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has pledged assets
of approximately RMB52.4 million (2014: approximately
RMB365.1 million) to secure the grant of banking facilities.

The following assets and their respective carrying values as
at the end of the reporting period are pledged to secure the
Group’s short-term bank loans:
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Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 26,233 108,731
Lease prepayments FEfFEE A 11,761 84,640
Trade receivables =) e 14,422 37,500
Assets classified as held-for-sale DREAFIEHEEE - 134,183
52,416 365,054

As at 31 December 2015, inventories and bank deposits
totalling of RMB2.8 million were pledged as securities for
on-going litigations where a subsidiary of the Group is
being sued for payments of previously purchased goods by
suppliers.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (2014: RMB Nil).

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no contracted
capital commitments which were not provided in the
financial statements (2014: approximately RMBO.1 million).
Employees and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 652 employees
(2014: 950 employees). For the year ended 31 December
2015, total staff costs were approximately RMB78.6 million
(2014: approximately RMB56.3 million).
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Chairman’s Statement and Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group also provided internal training,
external training and correspondence courses for its staff
in order to promote self improvement and enhancement of
skills relevant to work. The remuneration of the Directors was
determined with reference to their position, responsibilities
and experience and prevailing market conditions.

Foreign exchange risk

The business of the Group is mainly located in the PRC and
most of the transactions are denominated in Renminbi. Most
of the assets and liabilities of the Group are computed in
Renminbi. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s net foreign
currencies liabilities amounted to approximately RMB26.6
million (2014: net foreign currency assets of approximately
RMB1.6 million). During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group did not utilize any future contracts, currency
borrowings and otherwise to hedge against its foreign
exchange risk. However, the Group will continue to monitor
the risk exposures and will consider to hedge against
material currency risk if required.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no
other significant investments held nor material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries during the year. Apart from as
disclosed in this annual report, there was no plan authorised
by the Board for other material investments or additions of
capital assets at the date of this annual report.

PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 8 June 2015, the Company issued secured notes (the
“Notes”) with an aggregate face value of USD20,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB122,352,000) to Chance
Talent Management Limited (“Chance Talent”), a third
party. The Notes bear interest at 13% per annum, payable
semiannually, and will mature on 3 June 2017. On the
same date, the Company issued two secured convertible
bonds with face value of USD6,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB36,706,000) (“CB1”) and USD4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB24,470,000) (“CB2”) to
Chance Talent. Both convertible bonds bear interest at
13% per annum and will mature on 3 June 2018. Century
Investment pledged its 505,581,818 ordinary shares in the
Company (the “Charged Shares”) to secure the obligations
of the Company under the CB1, CB2 and the Notes (see
Notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements). The Charged
Shares represent approximately 32.99% of the issued
share capital of the Company. For further details of this
transaction, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 6 May 2015 and 3 June 2015.
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EFEHENEEENWR DM

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB
Nil).

PROSPECTS
Axle business

Due to the continued depression in the MDT and HDT
industries of the axle business, which brought about under-
utilization of production capacity of the Group’s business
in the axle and component of motor vehicles, and together
with the keen price competition among competitors in the
motor vehicles repair market, the income from this segment
will continue to decrease and the loss will also worsen. The
Board will continue to review the axle business and strive to
improve the business operation and financial position of this
business despite the declining demand for axle assembles
and the challenging business environment in general. The
Company will continue to explore business opportunities to
maximize the revenue generated from the axle business and
to review various alternatives that are in the best interest of
the Company and the shareholders of the Company.

Electronic commerce business

At present, there are a lot of business opportunities available
to our electronic commerce business, which is experiencing
rapid growth in the PRC. The Group will continue to
strengthen its supplier network and to explore more famous
brand suppliers, to establish long-term strategic cooperation
relationship with them, and to supply products with different
variety, high-quality and competitive prices. The Group will
commit time and resources to continuously develop its
business-to-business (B2B) and the business-to-customer
(B2C) electronic commerce businesses.

In order to leverage the resources committed for the
electronic commerce, the Group will also continue to explore
other related business opportunities. In particular, the Group
will use its O20 platform to promote offline sales of products
with a view to integrating between online virtual economy
and real economy. Also, the Group will explore new business
opportunities to provide services to fit its customers’ needs
in their online business.
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Directors and Senior Management

The biographical details of Directors and senior
management of the Company during the year under review,
and as at the date of this report, are set out below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Jerome, aged 63, was appointed as the
chairman and the executive Director on 25 March 2015. He
joined Beijing Century Fortunet Technology Co., Ltd (At Rttt
L EPRB AR AT (“OPCOo”), a 51% owned subsidiary of
the Company since 25 March 2015, in December 2014 and
previously served as the chief information officer of OPCo
till December 2015. Mr. Cheng graduated from University
Paris 7 with a DEA (D’Etudes approfondies) French degree in
information technology in 1986. He has working experience
of over 24 years in the IT industry, serving the AXA Group
and Oracle Corporation, both of which are among the Top
500 worldwide fortune companies. From 1986 to 1994,
Mr. Cheng served the AXA Group successively as network
engineer and architect, head of network architecture team
and head of information technology system performance.
From 1998 to 2008, Mr. Cheng worked for BEA Systems,
Inc., a company specialized in enterprise infrastructure
software products which was acquired by Oracle
Corporation in 2008, as principal consulting engineer in BEA
France, as managing consulting engineer in BEA France, as
pre-sales consulting manager in BEA APAC region and as
senior manager of BEA Technology Centre in Beijing, China.
In June 2008, Mr. Cheng joined Oracle Systems Hong
Kong Limited as the senior manager of soft development
and served as Principal Solution Architect of Oracle Fusion
Middleware world wide architecture team from May 2010 to
December 2014.

EENSREEE

REBFEELRNAREBY  ARAREERSREEEN
JEEFFIREIIT

BITES

Cheng Jerome %4  635%  RZE—hF=-H=+HH
BZEAERFATERT - FR_ZE—WF+=-AMNA
IRt BREEERAR((OPCol BEZE—HF =
A-+HHEBHARREASI%ER 2B AR MBI
OPCo BREEEE-_T—AF+=AHA AL - Cheng %4
R—ANANFEEREREL RS EREERMELE
il » IMEBFIMTTEH BB 24 FITIEKER » SERLR
EEEFEXEROHERRG (B AP FHFR 500 8 AF])
R—=R)NEE—RNME - Cheng A EBLTHRER -
LRIETRETIZAMNRERN  BEEEEBEENES
BiEGRBEE - R—HLALN\FE2=-FZT/)\F » Cheng
S TBEBEA Systems, Inc. (Z A EMPIN S LEEEE
HES RZEZNFHEREXROHERATWKE) &
EBEAABIE ZEM T260 - BEAARIE IREEM Ti2AT
BEA 2o Kb [ & A EE AR A Bl 5 BEA BT O s
EIE o R-EEZNF/NA - Cheng HEMAFEXEBE
FRAR EEESHRESAGE MR- —ZSFHAZE
—ZE— 4+ = B#EF Oracle Fusion Middleware 2 5281
EBx £ BRR R REEIEATD -

SESBENERAT T REEEHS $



Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Yuan Weitao, aged 49, was appointed as the
executive Director on 25 March 2015. He joined OPCo in
September 2014 and currently serves as a director and
executive vice president of OPCo, and a director of each of
Century Investment (Holding) Limited (“CIH”), a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and Century East, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of CIH. Mr. Yuan graduated from
Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering
in 1989 and a master’s degree in engineering in 1992. He
has working experience of over 20 years in international
trade, telecommunications and media industries. Mr. Yuan
joined China National Electronics Import & Export Company
(FEETHELEOLLRE]), administered by the Ministry of
Mechanical Electronic Devices of the People’s Republic
of China, after his graduation and worked in its overseas
subsidiary as a marketing manager in 1994. Mr. Yuan
joined CIH as vice president in 1999 and was responsible
for project development and external cooperation of CIH.
Mr. Yuan has been the general manager of Beijing United
Online Technology Co. Ltd (It REEAELERIFEAR AR,
a subsidiary of China Mobile Communications Corporation
(FPEZBBE(=SE 22 F]) (“China Mobile”), in 2000; a
vice-president and the representative of the China office
of CMBSat which was a subsidiary of Echostar, one of
the US leading satellite television operators, in 2006; and
a vice general manager of CSMM, a subsidiary of China
Telecommunications Corporation (4 Bl & {2 % & A 7)), from
2010 to August 2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Feng Xiaohui, aged 38, was appointed as the non-
executive Director on 25 March 2015. He was working
as the senior vice president of OPCo and Beijing Century
Fortunet Network Technology Co., Ltd. (bt R it42 51+
BB EMIABR AT, a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Company. He has working experience of over 13 years in
the communications and the IT industry. Mr. Feng graduated
from Xi’an Institute of Statistics with a bachelor’s degree
in economics in 1999. From August 1999 to April 2014,
Mr. Feng worked for Putian Eastcom Communication Co.,
Ltd (EXERFHERMBBR2AR), Huawei Technologies
Co., Ltd (FEARIMTAR Q7)) as a department head, and
Peopleyun Co., Ltd (EBZEAEFEERHEERAF]) as vice
president.

Mrs. Guo Yan, aged 43, was appointed as the non-executive
Director on 25 March 2015. She has working experience of
over 17 years in the IT industry. She has experience in the
management of IT sales and operation of over 15 years. She
has led numerous information/communications technology
projects and has extensive experience particularly in the
new mobile internet business model. Mrs. Guo graduated
in testing technology and instruments (#8357 F522)
from Xi’dian University in 1994 and obtained a postgraduate
diploma in astronomical instruments and methods (&3
#2882 757%) from the Chinese Academy of Science in
1997. From 1997 to 2014, Mrs. Guo worked for Huawei
Technologies Co., Ltd (ERFEMARAA]) as a senior
client manager of eastern China region, a director of
mobile system division of China region, a director of the
IT purchasing division of the China region. Mrs. Guo also
participated in the market development of China Mobile in
Shanghai as a team leader and acted as a project manager
in the project of the IT centralized purchasing bid of China
United Network Communications Corporations Limited (7
Bl &5 A R /AR]) (“China Unicom”).
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Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Keung, aged 61, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 25 March 2015. Mr.
Wong obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and CPA Australia and an associate member of
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr.
Wong is also a responsible officer for asset management,
advising on securities and advising on corporate finance for
Greater China Capital Limited under the SFO. Mr. Wong
has over 35 years of experience in finance, accounting
and management. Mr. Wong was an executive director,
the deputy general manager, group financial controller and
company secretary of Guangzhou Investment Company
Limited (now known as Yuexiu Property Company
Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 123) for over ten years. He is also
an independent non-executive director and a member of
the audit committee of Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock
code: 214), Asia Standard International Group Limited
(stock code: 129), Century City International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 355), Nickel Resources International
Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as China Nickel
Resources Holdings Company Limited) (stock code: 2889),
China Ting Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3398), ENM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 128), Golden Eagle Retail
Group Limited (stock code: 3308), Paliburg Holdings Limited
(stock code: 617), Regal Hotels International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 78), TPV Technology Limited (stock
code: 903), Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (stock code:
332), Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited (stock
code: 1176), and China Shanshui Cement Group Limited
(stock code: 691), all of which are companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-
executive director of First Natural Foods Holdings Limited
(now known as Imperial Pacific International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1076) from 26 November 2007 to
21 November 2013 and PacMos Technologies Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1010) from 9 August 1995 to 30 June
2014.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Liu Erhfei, aged 57, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 25 March 2015. Mr. Liu Erhfei
is a co-founder of Cindat Capital Management Limited
(“Cindat”), a global real estate investment platform with
China Cinda Asset Management Company Limited as an
anchor shareholder. Prior to founding Cindat in 2013, he
was an investment banker/investor since 1984. From 1999
t0 2012, he was the chairman of Merrill Lynch China initially
and country executive of Bank of America Merrill Lynch after
2009. From 1999 to 2002, he was also head of technology
in Asia. From 2002 to 2008, he was also co-chairman
of investment banking in Asia. In addition to his various
investment banking responsibilities, he was in charge of the
firm’s private equity business in China from 2006 to 2010.
He was elected the Banker of the Year in Asia in 2006 by
“Banker” magazine. From 1997 to 1999, he was head of
Asia for Credit Agricole Indosuez. From 1994 to 1997, he
was head of Asia for Smith Barney Inc.. From 1992 to 1994,
he worked at Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. initially as an
associate and later as head of investment banking for China.
From 1990 to 1992, he worked at Morgan Stanley Group
Inc. as head of coverage for Thailand. In 1984, he started his
investment banking career at Rothschild Inc. in New York.
Mr. Liu graduated from Harvard Business School in 1987
with a master’s degree in business administration, from
Brandeis University in 1984 with a bachelor of arts degree
in economics and international relations and from Beijing
Foreign Languages University in 1981. Mr. Liu is currently
on the boards of Huabao Finance Investment Company
Limited, the financial service platform of BaoSteel Group
Corporation; Wing Lung Bank Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the China Merchants Bank Group; and Aspire
Holdings Company Limited, a majority owned subsidiary of
China Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited.
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Mr. Chan Chi Keung Alan, aged 52, was appointed as the
independent non-executive Director on 25 March 2015. Mr.
Chan is a qualified solicitor admitted in England and Wales
in October 1991 and in Hong Kong in February 1992. Mr.
Chan practiced corporate and commercial law for more
than two decades. He is an independent non-executive
director and a member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of Focus Media Network Limited, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 8112). Previously, Mr. Chan held a number of regional
general counsel roles with international corporations,
including legal vice president for NagaCorp Limited, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3918), head of legal services of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club and the Greater China Legal Counsel for Sun
Microsystems. He was also an independent non-executive
director, chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of each of the audit committee and nomination
committee of L&A International Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8195) from 25 September
2014 to 19 October 2015. Mr. Chan obtained a bachelor of
science degree in civil engineering from the Aston University
of Birmingham, England and a bachelor of laws degree in
China Law from the China University of Political Science and
Law in Beijing, China. Mr. Chan is a registered civil celebrant
in Hong Kong; a council member of the China Overseas
Friendship Association, Beijing, China (/£ /&y iE & 18
=), a committee member by Special Appointment of the
Eighth Zhuhai Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (FBIARBUAHESZINETE
JUEZ E€HIEZ 8) and a director of the Hong Kong Chiu
Chow Chamber of Commerce Limited.
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Mr. Tsang Hing Hung, Eymon, aged 47, is the chief financial
officer. He has over 20 years of experience in strategic
management, corporate finance, investor relations, treasury,
accounting and finance. Prior to joining the Group, he was
the Chief Financial Officer of I.T Limited (stock code: 999)
for almost two years, and before that he was the Corporate
Finance Director of K. Wah International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 173) from 2009 to 2012. Mr. Tsang also
worked for The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited
(stock code: 45) from 1995 to 2008 during which he gained
experience in management and finance. Mr. Tsang holds
bachelor’s degrees in social sciences and laws with honours
from the University of Hong Kong and the University of
London respectively. He also received a master’s degree in
strategic focus with distinction from Heriot-Watt University
in 2008. Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Association
of Corporate Treasurers; and a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a chartered financial analyst of the CFA Institute, a
certified financial risk manager of the Global Association Risk
Professionals and a tax adviser of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong.

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy, aged 42, is the financial
controller, company secretary, and one of the authorised
representatives of the Company. He graduated from Hong
Kong Baptist University with an Honours Degree with major
in Accounting. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan has over
19 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. He had worked in South China Media Group
for 15 years from December 1999 to May 2015 and his latest
position was the deputy financial controller. He had worked
in South China Land Limited (formerly named as Capital
Publications Limited, stock code 8155) from January 2004
to June 2008 as the qualified accountant and company
secretary.

Mr. Yang Jinwen, aged 42, is the vice president. Mr. Yang is
responsible for daily operations, production, distribution and
product development for our Group. Mr. Yang has worked in
our Group for 13 years. He has over ten years of experience
in operation and management in the automotive parts and
axle industry. Mr. Yang graduated from China Agricultural
University (AP Bl 22 % K &) with a bachelor’s degree in heat
engines (ZA 1 E)H#) in 1996. He was qualified as an
intermediate mechanical engineer in December 2003 by the
Personnel Bureau of the city of Longyan (REETAZER).
He was responsible for technology management at Longyan
Pump and Nozzle Plant of Longma Group of Fujian (8%
BESEERES MY REM) from August 1996 to February
2002.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2015.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 May 2008 under The Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
with (“Companies Law”) with limited liability.

In preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Group underwent
a reorganization. As a result, the Company became the
holding company of each of the companies currently
comprising the Group. Details of the reorganization are set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 13 September
2010. The shares of the Company were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 24 September 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 17 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out in the financial statements on page 49.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 is set out on
page 49 to 155.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2015 are set out on page 52.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The distributable reserves held by the Company are set out
in note 29(e) to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Changes in share capital of the Company for the year ended

31 December 2015 are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 28 June 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option scheme
for the purpose of enabling the Group to grant options
to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group (the “Share Option Scheme”).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no share option
had been granted under the Share Option Scheme and as
at 31 December 2015, the number of outstanding share
options is zero.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 80,000,000 Shares, which represented approximately
5% of the Shares in issue. The Share Option Scheme
became effective on 24 September 2010 and the options
issued pursuant to the Share Option Scheme will expire
no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to any employees, directors, advisors, consultants,
suppliers, customers, distributors and such other persons
who in the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or have
contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe shares of the Company.

For any options granted to Directors, chief executives
or substantial shareholders of the Company, options to
be granted shall be approved by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is the proposed grantee of options).
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the total shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the shareholders.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1.00, which will be payable on or before a prescribed
acceptance date. In relation to any options granted under
the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price is determined
by the Directors, and will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

The Share Option Scheme does not contain any minimum
period(s) for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. However, at the time of granting of the options,
the Board may specify any such minimum period(s).
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Unless otherwise terminated by the Board or the
shareholders in a general meeting in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Scheme shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date on
which it became unconditional which was 24 September
2010, after which no further options will be granted or
offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to
give effect to the exercise of any subsisting options granted
prior to the expiry of the 10-year period or otherwise as may
be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share
Option Scheme. The remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately 4.5 years.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted on 10 February 2012 to recognize and motivate
the contributions made to the Group by its employees and
to give incentives in order to retain them for the continuous
operation and development of the Group. Details of
the rules of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 10 February 2012
and 9 October 2013.

On 25 March 2015, 2,832,000 ordinary shares held under
the Share Award Scheme were awarded to an employee of
the Group with a fair value per share of HK$0.79 (equivalent
to approximately RMBO0.63 per share). The fair value of the
shares was determined by reference to the closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares on 25 March 2015. These
awarded shares were vested on 27 March 2015. Details of
the shares held under the Share Award Scheme are set out
in note 27 to the financial statements.

The Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of 5 years commencing on the date of adoption on
10 February 2012. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
shares will be acquired by the independent trustee at the
cost of the Company and be held in trust for selected
employees until the end of each vesting period. Vested
shares will be transferred to the selected employees at nil
consideration. At no point in time shall the Trustee be holding
more than 10% of the issued capital of the Company under
the Share Award Scheme. Despite that the Board may
provide directions to grant the voting right to the Trustee,
the Board exerts no influence over the voting decision of
the Trustee and the Trustee is entitled to vote in its sole
absolute discretion, if such voting right is so granted. As at
31 December 2015, no voting right has been granted by the
Board to the Trustee and no voting right in respect of the
Shares held by it under the Scheme has been exercised in
any general meeting of the Company after the adoption of
the Share Award Scheme.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
comprised approximately 62% of the Group’s total sales
and the sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
were approximately 18% of the Group’s total sales.
The aggregate purchases during the year under review
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were
approximately 16% of the Group’s cost of sales and the
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier were
approximately 10% of the Group’s cost of sales.

So far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors,
their associates or substantial shareholders (which own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has
any interest in the share capital of any of the five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 are set out in notes 24 to 26 to the
financial statements.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations
during the year under review (2014: RMB Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

As at 31 December 2015, the Group held property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB110 million. Details
of the movements are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company did not redeem any of its listed shares
during the year ended 31 December 2015. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
repurchased any of the listed shares of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS

During the year under review and as at the date of this report,
the Board comprised the following directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kwai Mo (Chairman)
(resigned on 25 March 2015)

Ms. Wu Ching (resigned on 16 June 2015)

Mr. Lai Fengcai (Chief executive officer)
(resigned on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Cheng Jerome (Chairman)
(appointed on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Yuan Weitao (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy (resigned on 17 February 2016)
Mr. Feng Xiaohui (appointed on 25 March 2015)
Mrs. Guo Yan (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Weizhou (resigned on 25 March 2015)

Dr. Li Xiuging (resigned on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Chong Ching Hei (resigned on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Liu Erhfei (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan (appointed on 25 March 2015)

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, each of Mrs.
Guo Yan, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Mr. Liu Erhfei and Mr. Chan
Chi Keung, Alan will retire from the office of Director by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer himself/herself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
entered into a service agreement with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 25 March 2015
except that Mr. Cheng Jerome entered into a revised
service agreement with the Company for the period from
16 December 2015 to 24 March 2018, whereas each of the
independent non-executive Directors entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 25 March 2015.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with any member of the Group which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends
to the Board the remuneration and other benefits paid
by the Company to the Directors. The remuneration
of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by the
Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate. Details of
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 13 to
19 of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below and the section headed “Material
Related Party Transactions” in note 33 to the financial
statements , there was no contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party to and in which a Director had
a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly, and
subsisted at the end of the financial year under review or at
any time during the financial year under review.

DIRECTOR’S INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors held any interests in any competing
business against the Company or any of its jointly controlled
entities and subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2015.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of

31 December 2015 are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF
THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company or their respective associates
had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, to the best of the Director’s
knowledge, the following persons (other than the Directors
and chief executives of the Company) had or deemed or
taken to have interests and short positions of 5% or more in
the shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
under provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:
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RARRGREBARONFRERAXR

Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying
Shares of our Company

Approximate

Name of substantial Interest in percentage of
Shareholders Nature of Interest Shares shareholding Notes
B RE
FTERRERE ERME B3 R Aot MiaE
Century Investment (Holding) Limited (“CIHL”) Beneficial interest 536,231,818 34.99 1
oy Ea
Starr International Foundation Interest of controlled 224,710,691 14.66 2
corporations
LB R
Yang Liu Interests of controlled 153,572,000 10.02 3
2 corporations
RIEEE R
Jinyu Developments Limited Beneficial interest 84,263,636 5.50 4
iR EERAR AR EmfEm
Notes: izt -

1.

CIHL is wholly owned by Ms. Pun Tang. On 3 June 2015, a
charge over the 505,581,818 Shares held by CIHL had been
created in favour of Chance Talent Management Limited.
Chance Talent Management Limited is wholly owned by CCBI
Investments Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by CCB
International (Holdings) Limited. CCB International (Holdings)
Limited is wholly owned by CCB Financial Holdings Limited,
which is in turn wholly owned by CCB International Group
Holdings Limited. CCB International Group Holdings Limited is
wholly owned by China Construction Bank Corporation, which is
owned as to 57.26% by Central Huijin Investment Ltd.

Starr Investments Cayman I, Inc. and Starr Investments Cayman
V, Inc. are the beneficial owners of Shares as to 7.49% and 7.17%
respectively. Starr Investments Cayman |, Inc. is wholly-owned
by Starr International Cayman, Inc., which is in turn wholly-
owned by Starr Insurance and Reinsurance Ltd.. Starr Insurance
and Reinsurance Ltd. and Starr Investments Cayman V, Inc. are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Starr International Investments Ltd.,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Starr International Company
Inc.. Starr International Company Inc. is wholly-owned by Starr
International AG, which is wholly-owned by Starr International
Foundation, a charitable foundation established in Switzerland.

Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Limited, Atlantis
Investment Management (Ireland) Limited and Atlantis Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited are the beneficial owners
of Shares. Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman) Limited is
wholly owned by Yang Liu. Investment Management (Ireland)
Limited and Atlantis Investment Management (Hong Kong)
Limited are wholly owned by Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited
which is in turn wholly owned by Yang Liu.

Jinyu Developments Limited is wholly owned by Wu Jindi.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2015.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the employer and employee are
required to make contributions of 5% of the employees’
relevant income to the scheme, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions made to the
scheme are vested immediately.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China participate in the retirement schemes operated
by the local authorities. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their salaries to
these schemes to pay the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group in respect to these schemes is the required
contributions under the schemes. For the year ended 31
December 2015, the Group’s total contributions to the
retirement schemes charged in the income statement
amounted to approximately RMB4.7 million (2014
approximately RMB2.9 million). Details of the Group’s
pension scheme and the basis of calculation are set out in
note 8(b) to the financial statements.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a
view to enhancing investor confidence and the Company’s
accountability and transparency. The Company therefore
strives to attain and maintain effective corporate governance
practices and procedures. Throughout the year ended 31
December 2015 and save as disclosed herein this report,
the Company has complied with the CG Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Group’s principal
corporate governance practices are set out on pages 34 to
46 of the annual report.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company (as lender) and Century Network Holding
Limited (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
(as borrower) entered into the Loan Agreement on 11
June 2015, pursuant to which the Company conditionally
agreed to advance an unsecured loan of an aggregate
amount of not more than US$22 million to its 51% owned
subsidiary, Century Network. The details are disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 11 June 2015. As
at 31 December 2015, the full amount of US$22 million
was advanced to Century Network Holding Limited by the
Company.

On 27 November 2015, Fujian Changfeng Jixie Jituan
Company Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Beijing Shiji Xinganxian Wanglu Jishu
Company Limited (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into the Loan Agreement pursuant to
which Beijing Shiji Xinganxian agreed to advance a loan
in the principal amount of not more than RMB49 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$59.4 million) to Fujian
Changfeng. The details are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 27 November 2015. As at 31
December 2015, RMB33 million was advanced to Fujian
Changfeng and its subsidiaries by Beijing Shiji Xinganxian.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions set out below have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

@iy in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing the relevant transactions, and on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of the Group’s continuing connected transactions
are as follows:

1.  Purchase of roughcast axle housing from
Yongding Changfeng Machinery Manufacturing
Factory (“Yongding Changfeng”)

On 29 May 2010, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”)
with Yongding Changfeng, pursuant to which
the Company agreed to purchase or procure its
subsidiaries to purchase roughcast axle housing
from Yongding Changfeng for the production of the
products for a term of three years commencing from 1
January 2010 to 31 December 2012.
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Subsequently on 24 December 2012, the parties
entered into a renewal agreement to renew the terms
of the Purchase Agreement for a fixed term of another
three years expiring on 31 December 2015.

The price for the roughcast axle housing supplied
by Yongding Changfeng will be determined on the
following basis in order of priority:

o the price prescribed by the State (including
any price prescribed by any relevant local
authorities), if applicable;

o the price recommended under the State pricing
guidelines, when no State-prescribed price is
available;

° the market price, when neither the Stateprescribed
price nor the State recommended price is
available; or

° the price which is no less favourable to the
Group than is available from independent third
parties, when none of the above is available or
applicable.

Mr. Lu is a cousin of Mr. Wong Kwai Mo, being one
of the controlling shareholders of the Company. As
Yongding Changfeng may be substantially influenced
or controlled by Mr. Lu, who is the legal representative
and the factory manager of Yongding Changfeng, and
Mr. Wong Kwai Mo, who has held a prior position and
role at Yongding Changfeng, Yongding Changfeng
is therefore deemed as a connected person of our
Company pursuant to Rules 14A.06 and 14A.11(4) of
the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, there was no actual
amount of transactions under the Purchase
Agreement and the annual cap amount granted by the
Stock Exchange was RMB20 million.

Supply Agreement with Yongding Changfeng

On 29 May 2010, the Company entered into a supply
agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with Yongding
Changfeng, pursuant to which the Company has
agreed to supply or procure members of the Group to
supply scrap steel which is steel waste created during
the production of steel and expected to be disposed of
or not required by the Group to Yongding Changfeng
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2010 to 31 December 2012.
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Subsequently on 24 December 2012, the parties
entered into a renewal agreement to renew the terms
of the Supply Agreement for a fixed term of another
three years expiring on 31 December 2015. The price
for the scrap steel supplied by the Group to Yongding
Changfeng will be determined on the following basis in
order of priority:

° the price prescribed by the State (including
any price prescribed by any relevant local
authorities), if applicable;

o the price recommended under the State pricing
guidelines, when no State-prescribed price is
available;

° the market price, when neither the Stateprescribed
price nor the State recommended price is
available; or

° the price which is no less favorable to the
Group than is available from independent third
parties, when none of the above is available or
applicable.

Mr. Lu is a cousin of Mr. Wong Kwai Mo, being one
of the controlling shareholders of the Company. As
Yongding Changfeng may be substantially influenced
or controlled by Mr. Lu, who is the legal representative
and the factory manager of Yongding Changfeng, and
Mr. Wong Kwai Mo, who has held a prior position and
role at Yongding Changfeng, Yongding Changfeng
is therefore deemed as a connected person of our
Company pursuant to Rules 14A.06 and 14A.11(4) of
the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, there was no actual
amount of transactions under Supply Agreement
and the annual cap amount granted by the Stock
Exchange was RMB20 million.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

None of the related party transactions set out in the section
headed “Material Related Party Transactions” in note 33 to
the financial statements constitutes connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction which is required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 18 May, 2016 to Friday, 20 May 2016,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to determine who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 20 May
2016, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 17 May
2016.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 have been audited by KPMG who shall
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
KPMG as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Cheng Jerome
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures with a view
to being a transparent and responsible organization which
is open and accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
The Board strives to adhere to the principles of corporate
governance and has adopted sound corporate governance
practices to meet the legal and commercial standards,
focusing on areas such as internal control, fair disclosure
and accountability to all shareholders to ensure the
transparency and accountability of all operations of the
Company. The Company believes that effective corporate
governance is an essential factor to create more value for its
shareholders. The Board will continue to review and improve
the corporate governance practices of the Group from time
to time to ensure that the Group is led by an effective Board
in order to optimize return for shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company has complied
with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of seven Directors, two of whom
are executive Directors, two of whom are non-executive
Directors and three of whom are independent non-executive
Directors. The functions and duties conferred on the Board
include convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting on
the work of the Board to the shareholders at shareholders’
meetings as may be required by applicable laws,
implementing resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings,
determining the Company’s business plans and investment
plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final
accounts, formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend
and bonus distributions as well as exercising other powers,
functions and duties as conferred on it by the Articles and
applicable laws. The management team is delegated with
the authority and responsibilities by the Board for the day-
to-day management and operations of the Group. The
Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves
the overall strategies and policies of the Company. The
composition of the Board is well balanced with the directors
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant
to the business of the Group. The executive Directors,
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the
Company.
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The composition of the Board during the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this Annual Report is
set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kwai Mo (Chairman)
(resigned on 25 March 2015)

Ms. Wu Ching (resigned on 16 June 2015)

Mr. Lai Fengcai (Chief executive officer)
(resigned on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Cheng Jerome (Chairman)
(appointed on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Yuan Weitao (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy (resigned on 17 February 20176)
Mr. Feng Xiaohui (appointed on 25 March 2015)
Mrs. Guo Yan (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Weizhou (resigned on 25 March 2015)

Dr. Li Xiuging (resigned on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Chong Ching Hei (resigned on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Liu Erhfei (appointed on 25 March 2015)

Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan (appointed on 25 March 2015)

The biographical details of the current Board members are
set out under the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 13 to 19 of this report. The list
of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise,
and the independent non-executive directors represented
over one-third of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of its independent non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Based on the contents of such confirmation, the Company
considers that the three independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the
specific independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.
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All Directors have separate and independent access to the
Company’s management team to fulfill their duties and,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense. All Directors also have access to the company
secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are
followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/committee
papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notices in advance of the
meetings. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of
Board committees, which record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed, are kept by the company secretary and are
open for inspection by Directors.

The Company has arranged for appropriate and sufficient
insurance coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions taken against its directors arising out of corporate
activities.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Company, and considers and
approves the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

Mr. Wong Kwai Mo is the husband of Ms. Wu Ching, and
Ms. Wu Ching is the wife of Mr. Wong Kwai Mo. Save as
disclosed, there is no other relationship among members of
the Board, the Chairman or the Chief Executive Officer.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 25 March 2015, whereas each of
the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company and is appointed
for an initial term of three years commencing from 25 March
2015.

In accordance with article 84 of the Articles, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Prior to 16 June 2015, the roles and duties of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are carried
out by different individuals and have been clearly defined
in writing. The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Wong Kwai
Mo (before 25 March 2015) and Mr. Cheng Jerome (after
25 March 2015), and the Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Lai
Fengcai. The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are held by separate persons in order to preserve
independence and a balance of views and judgement. With
the support of the management team, the Chairman is
responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.
The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated
by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations. The Chief Executive
Officer is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organizational structure, control systems and
internal procedures and processes for the Board’s approval.

On 16 June 2015, Mr Lai Fengcai resigned as Chief
Executive Officer. The Company is in the process of
identifying a suitable candidate to assume the role as chief
executive officer of the Company.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of
the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director will receive a formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant statutory requirements.

Directors participated in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. They were involved in relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses. All Directors
also read materials in relation to regular update to statutory
requirements, Listing Rules and other relevant topics related
to a listed company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of sound corporate governance practices,
the Board has established the following Board committees
to oversee the particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each
of these committees comprises independent non-executive
Directors who are being invited to join as members.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with
Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
monitor the Company’s financial reporting and internal
control principles of the Company and to provide advice and
comments to the Board. The members meet regularly with
the external auditors and the Company’s management team
for the review, supervision and discussion of the Company’s
financial reporting and internal control procedures and
ensure that management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, namely Mr. Wong Chi Keung,
Mr. Liu Erhfei and Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan, of whom are
all independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Wong Chi
Keung, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
under review to review the financial results of the Group and
significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, selection and appointment
of the external auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the period under review, the Audit Committee is
also responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

° to develop and review the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and
management team;

° to review and monitor the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with all legal and regulatory
requirements (where applicable);

° to develop, review and monitor the relevant code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors of the Group; and

° to review the Group’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established on 24
September 2010 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Liu Erhfei with two Directors,
namely Mr. Cheng Jerome and Mr. Wong Chi Keung, as
members. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to formulate and recommend remuneration
policy to the Board, make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
management team’s remunerations, approve and review
management’s proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives and make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors
of the Company. The Board expects the Remuneration
Committee to exercise independent judgment and
ensures that executive Directors do not participate in the
determination of their own remunerations.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee
meeting during the year under review to review and made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company and remuneration packages
of Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) was established on 24 September
2010. The chairman is Mr Cheng Jerome, an executive
Director of the Company, and the two other members
are Mr. Wong Chi Keung and Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan,
The Nomination Committee is responsible for determining
the policy for the nomination of Directors, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendation to the Board on selection of candidates for
directorships, appointment and reappointment of Directors
and Board succession and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

The Company adopts the board diversity policy and
recognizes board diversity as the key element for the
achievement of its strategic goals and sustainable
development. In considering the composition and diversity
of the Board, the Company takes into account a number
of factors from various aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All decisions regarding appointment of members
of the Board will be based on the candidates’ meritocracy
having regard to a set of objective standards that take into
account the benefits of board diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a set of diversity
criteria, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be made with reference to the candidates’ merits and
contributions to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the year under review to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.
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NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’
ATTENDANCE

The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and the general
meeting of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2015 is set out below:
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Extraordinary General Meeting

LT
Annual  on 10 March on 22 July
Board Audit ~ Remuneration ~ Nomination General 215 2015
Meetng  Committee  Committee  Commitiee Meetng H-E-1F R-F-1f
Eze % BUZEE  HHZEE  RAZEE  RREERE ZAtR th-tzR
Executive Directors #nEz
. Cheng Jerome Cheng Jerome 25 M NATEE  NABER  NATER 1" NATEE 1
(3ppointed on 25 March 2015) (REE-FE=f-1REEER)
Mr, Yuan Weitao RERRE m NATER N/ATER N/ATER 17 NATER 17
(aopointed on 25 Merch 2015) (R-F-RE=f-126EER)
Mr. Wong Kivai Mo THELE 1 NANEE 1 11 NAPER " NATER
(fesigned on 25 March 2015) (RoE-RE=A-1RA8E)
Ms. Wu Ching iEzan 506 NATER NATER NA B NAZREH 0n NAZGH
(resigred on 16 June 2015) (R-F-2E7 f1rREE)
Mr. Lai Fengcal BEVEE 17 NATER N/ATER N/ATEF NA TR 0l NAEH
(fesigned on 25 March 2015 (K-F-FE=f-1RASH)
Non-executie Directors HiEE
Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy Ei e 58 NATEE  NABER  NATER 0/ i 0
(resigned on 17 February 2016) (KoE-AE-f1tAEE)
Mr. Feng Xiaohui BB 3 NATER N/ATER N/ATER 0 NATER 0l
(aopointed on 25 Merch 2015) (R-F-RE=f-126EER)
Wrs. Guo Yan Pras 1 NATEE NARMER  NATER 0/ NANEH 0
(sppointed on 25 March 2015) (RoF-FE=A=12HEER)
Independent non-executiie Directors VA7 7EE
Mr. Wong Chi Keung Ay m 17 N/ATER N/ATEF 17 NATER 0l
(aopointed on 25 Merch 2015) (R-F-RE=f-12FEER)
Mr, Liu Erhei f-Rak 3 n NATER VAT 0/ NAZEH 01
(sppointed on 25 March 2015) (RoF-FE=A=12HEER)
Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan Biant 6/7 1 NATER NA B 17 NAZEH 0A
(3ppointed on 25 March 2015) (RoE-FE=f=1REEER)
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Mr. Chong Ching Hel HEERk 1 1 17 NA B NAZEH 0n NAZEH
(resigred on 16 June 2015) (R-F-2E7 f1rREE)
Code Provision A.6.7 SFRIMRICE A6.7 IR

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that
independent non-executive directors and non-executive
directors should attend general meetings of the Company.
Mr. Liu Erhfei, Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy, Mr. Feng Xiaohui,
and Mrs. Guo Yan were not able to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 21 May 2015.
Ms. Wu Ching, Mr. Lai Fengcai, Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy,

PEERTAZTARXEALT RREBILIFNTERER
3Fﬁtﬁ§$ AHEARRBBRERAS - BI-RELE  EFK
T B NERERBRLERELEARANR _F—AF
HA :+*E§Eﬁ2ﬁ§%§@¢ﬁ@ o B L~ BRI
& EBRrL - KMEMNEE  FEBBLIGEELLER

BRLHER _T-AF=A+HEBTZRREIRE - &8
Lt BB B m2oReE - BITREL

SESBENERAT T REEEHS ¢



Corporate Governance Report

Lz st /s
/JE E/ﬁ#ﬁ%

Mr. Zhu Weizhou, Dr. Li Xiuging and Mr. Chong Ching Hei
were not able to attend the extraordinary general meeting
on 10 March 2015. Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy, Mr. Feng
Xioahui, Mrs. Guo Yan, Mr. Wong Chi Keung, Mr. Liu Erhfei
and Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan were not able to attend the
extraordinary general meeting on 22 July 2015.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct for securities transactions. Specific
enquiries have been made with all Directors, who have
confirmed that, during the period under review, they were in
compliance with the required provisions set out in the Model
Code. All Directors declared that they have complied with
the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at
that date and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The statement of
the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’'s Report”.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the remuneration

paid or payable to the Group’s auditors, KPMG, in respect
of their audit and non-audit services are as follows:

ltems =)=
Statutory audit services

Non-audit services IERZ RS
Total 1A gy
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and shareholders’ interests, and review and monitor
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems on a regular basis so as to
ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The Company has established
written policies and procedures applicable to all operating
units to ensure the effectiveness of internal controls. The
Company also has a process of identifying, evaluating, and
managing the significant risks to the achievement of its
operational objective. This process is subject to continuous
improvement and has been in place since 24 September
2010 and up to the date of this report. The day-to-day
operation is entrusted to the individual department, which
is accountable for its own conduct and performance, and is
required to strictly adhere to the policies set by the Board.
The Company carries out reviews on the effectiveness of the
internal control systems from time to time in order to ensure
that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and
ever changing business environment.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
systems including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management for the year ended 31
December 2015. Internal Control department was assigned
to assist the Board to perform a high-level review of the
internal control systems for its business operations and
processes. Such review covered the financial, compliance
and operational controls as well as risk management
mechanisms and assessment was made by discussions
with the management of the Company and its external
auditors. The Board believes that the existing internal control
systems are adequate and effective.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
REQUISITION AND CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING (INCLUDING PROPOSING A
RESOLUTION AT AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING)

° Any two or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholders”) shall at all times have the
right, by a written requisition signed by the Eligible
Shareholders concerned (the “Requisition”), to require
the Board to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, and to put any resolution so requisitioned to
vote at such extraordinary general meeting.

° Eligible Shareholders who wish to requisition the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
for the purpose of proposing a resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting must deposit the
Requisition at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 808 — 814, 8/F, Sun
Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

° The Requisition must state clearly the names of
the Eligible Shareholders concerned, specify the
objects of the meeting, and be signed by the Eligible
Shareholders concerned. The Eligible Shareholders
must prove their shareholdings in the Company to the
satisfaction of the Company.

° The Company will check the Requisition and the
identities and the shareholdings of the Eligible
Shareholders will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrar. If the Requisition is found
to be proper and in order and in compliance with
the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, the Board will within 21 days of the date of
deposit of the Requisition, proceed duly to convene
an extraordinary general meeting to be held within
a further 21 days, for the purpose of putting any
resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholders to
vote at such extraordinary general meeting. However,
if the Requisition has been verified as not in order
and not in compliance with the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company, the Eligible
Shareholders concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the Board will not convene
an extraordinary general meeting and will not put any
resolution(s) proposed by the Eligible Shareholders to
vote at any such extraordinary general meeting or any
other general meeting of the Company.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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If within 21 days of the date of deposit of the
Requisition, the Board has not advised the Eligible
Shareholders that the Requisition is not in order and
not in compliance with the memorandum and articles
of association of the Company, and the Board has
failed to proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting, the Eligible Shareholders themselves (or any
one or more of the Eligible Shareholders who holds
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all the
Eligible Shareholders who signed the Requisition)
may proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which general meetings may be convened by
the Board in accordance with the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company, provided that
the extraordinary general meeting so convened must
be held before the expiration of three months from
the date of deposit of the Requisition. All reasonable
expenses incurred by the Eligible Shareholders
concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholders concerned
by the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
of the Company and investors. The Board also recognizes
that effective communication with its investors is critical
in establishing investors’ confidence and attracting new
investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining
a high degree of transparency to ensure the investors and
the shareholders of the Company will receive accurate,
clear, comprehensive and timely information of the Group
through the publication of annual reports, interim reports,
announcements and circulars. The Company also publishes
all corporate communications on the Company’s website at
about.ccigmall.com. Further, shareholders of the Company
may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong. The Board maintains regular
dialogues with institutional investors and analysts from time
to time to keep them informed of the Group’s strategy,
operations, management and plans. The Directors and
members of various board committees will attend the annual
general meeting of the Company and answer any questions
raised. The resolution of every important proposal will be
proposed at general meetings separately.

The chairman of general meetings of the Company would
explain the procedures for conducting a poll before
proposing a resolution for voting. The poll results will
be announced at general meetings and published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company,
respectively. In addition, the Company regularly meets
with institutional investors, financial analysts and financial
media, and promptly releases information related to any
significant progress of the Company, so as to promote the
development of the Company through mutual and efficient
communications.

During the year under review, there was no change to the
constitutional documents of the Company.

Shareholders investors and the media can make enquiries to
the Company through the following means:

Telephone number:  (852) 2776 8500

By post: Room 808-814,
8/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
30 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
Attention: Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Billy
By email: ir@cigmall.cn

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF

FORTUNET E-COMMERCE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 49 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 and of the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 4
to the financial statements which states that the Company
has made certain prior year’s adjustments to restate the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBRRHEMZERSER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Renminbi (‘RMB"))  (AARM (T AR ) FI7R)

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T ARETTT
(restated)
(#eE5)
Revenue WA 5 170,355 336,928
Cost of sales SHER A (330,160) (330,938)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8),EF 5(b) (159,805) 5,990
Other income/(loss) Hap A (E518) 6 9,498 (23,940)
Selling and distribution expenses HE Ny HF Y (45,527) (20,529)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (86,384) (54,183)
Research and development costs T EE R AR (27,388) (17,725)
Impairment losses VERIEN, S| 7 (312,288) (263,374)
Loss from operations KEEE (621,894) (373,761)
Finance costs B 8(a) (48,732) (29,336)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AT Z WS,
(&) 20(b)(i) 39,409 (6,105)
Loss before taxation BRF RIS 18 8 (631,217) (409,202)
Income tax PSR 9 16,264 270
Loss and total comprehensive income FRBEBERZEBA
for the year g (614,953) (408,932)
Attributable to: BUR A RS :
Equity shareholders of the Company RABERIRR (573,978) (411,651)
Non-controlling interests eI (40,975) 2,719
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZHERALZE
income for the year (614,953) (408,932)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARRHE(ARKE) 12 (0.42) (0.52)

The notes on pages 55 to 155 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR R

at 31 December 2015 R=Z—AF+=-A=+—AH
(Expressed in RMB) (LA AER¥EZII7R)

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARET T ARBT T
(restated)
(&&E7)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - R K& 13 109,528 199,092
Lease prepayments AN EFE 14 11,484 80,262
Prepayment for acquisition of machinery fB B TET IR - 236
Intangible assets B AE 15 18,124 =
Goodwill P 16 61,013 -
Deferred tax assets RETIBE = 28(b) 26,270 145
226,419 279,735
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 18 63,604 188,238
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E bR IE 19 49,490 349,344
Assets classified as held-for-sale DEBFELREZEE 20 240,920 190,388
Pledged bank deposits EIHEIRRITER 21 53 3,350
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEER 22 195,632 6,358
549,699 738,178
Current liabilities REERE
Trade and other payables B 5 R H AR IR 23 150,924 246,463
Bank and other loans IRITREMER 24(a) 171,904 314,080
Liabilities classified as held-for-sale DERSELHEZAE 20 167,278 22,799
Income tax payable FER PR - 1,343
490,106 584,685
Net current assets REEEFE 59,593 153,493
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBAE 286,012 433,228
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Secured notes BIRHEE 25 128,271 =
Convertible bonds AN ES 26 80,409 =
Deferred tax liabilities REEBIEBE 28(b) 5,241 -
213,921 =
NET ASSETS BEFE 72,091 433,228

The notes on pages 55 to 155 form part of these financial %55 B & 155 B st AR Rk 2 —3pH °
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR R

at 31 December 2015 R=T—FF+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in RMB)  (JAAR¥57R)

2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E ARET T ARETTT
(restated)
(&&=71)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARREE 29
Share capital N 98,557 53,560
Reserves i (4,696) 379,668

Total equity attributable to equity ARAEERRREGAER

shareholders of the Company 93,861 433,228
Non-controlling interests IR R (21,770) =
TOTAL EQUITY ERERS 72,091 433,228

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of RoE—RNEZ A=+ BEE=S e NIRRT o
directors on 31 March 2016.

Cheng Jerome Yuan Weitao
Cheng Jerome REE
Director (Chairman) Director
BEFE(LE) BE

The notes on pages 55 to 155 form part of these financial 55 B & 155 B st AR MRk 2 —3pH °
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZE=
(Expressed in RMB)  (AAR¥%IR)

—hRFEtZA=t+—HLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FRERRFRSE
Shares held
under share Non-
Share Share award  Capital  Surplus Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme  reserve  reseves  reserve losses Total interests equity
it
iviEL R
Be  REEE SENRG BARE  BREE  RREE  EiEE fif FEREE 48R
RMB'0O0 ~ RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMB'0O0  RMBO00
ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR
Note290) Note290) (ote 296H) Note 29 Note 29 Note 29616
(sroson) (skon) (Hist2om) (Hkoaidi) (k29 (Hisk29ig)
Balance at 1 January 2014 A-E-RE-F-REH 53060 599,296 (1627 26982 149020 82 (174049 853404 18796 872160
Changes in equity for 2014; “E-MEEREE:
(Loss)/proft and totel comprehensiie ncome. N (B588) / #HIR 2
forhe year (estated) W\B% (E5) - - - - - - s @G 219 (408%9Y)
Acaquiston of adaffona nterest WEHBLTENER
ina subsidiary - - - - - (8,525) - (8,525) (21479 (30,000
Balance at 31 December 2014 (restated) W=E-MET=A=1-A
EH(EE) 53060 599,296 (1627) 206982 149020 (7703 (a86300) 433228 - 438
Balance at 1 January 2015 W-5-RE-A-Rks
As previously reported VIS 53060 599,29 (62 269 149020 (7703 (327,09 632430 - 692430
Prior year's adusments Notg 4 BEEREE(E) - - - - - - (2590 - (0
As restated fagj| 53060 599,296 (1627 26982 149020 (703 (686,300 433228 - 4328
Changes in equity for 2015: “3-1EEREE:
Loss and total comprehensive income KERERRZENAGE
for the year - - - - - - (73978 (573978)  (40975)  (614,953)
Issuance of shares to new equiy RAATERRRET
shareholders ofthe Compeny R (HEE290))
Note 296 T8 119466 - - - - - 15 - 15
lssuance of shares on acatistion of Sl EHBA
asubsictary (Notes 29(c)i) and 30) B (2900 R30) 1499 68,376 - - - - - 15,875 19,205 95,080
Shares granted under the RERRZETE
share award scheme (Nofe 27) Fmh (he2r) - - - 1m - - - 1,12 - 1,712
Shares vested under he RERNREEEE
share award scheme (ote 27 it (Wit 2m) - - m - - 145 - - -
44,907 187,842 1,627 - - - 145 234,611 19,205 253,816
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=8-2F12A=t1-R
268 BT 0715 R 00 (70 (116019 %S @I 72
The notes on pages 55 to 155 form part of these financial 55 B & 155 B st AR MRk 2 —3pH °

statements.
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Operating activities
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses
Write-down of inventories
Finance costs
Interest income

Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment and assets
classified as held-for-sale

(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Equity-settled share-based
payment expenses
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase/(decrease) in trade
and other payables

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Payments for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Payments for lease prepayments

Proceeds from disposal of assets classified

as held-for-sale
Deposits received for disposal of
assets classified as held-for-sale

Cash and cash equivalents reclassified as

assets held-for-sale

Cash and cash equivalents acquired through

the acquisition of a subsidiary
Transaction costs in connection with
the acquisition of a subsidiary

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries,

net of cash disposed of

Deposit received for disposal of a subsidiary

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits

Interest received

Net cash generated from
investing activities

The notes on pages 55 to 155 form part of these financial

statements.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GEHETMER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 HZ=Z—AF+-A=+—HILFE

Note
B sE

RESTE
KA RTE R
AT RAEEL A

e Ko i 3 8(c)
REEE 7
FEMUR 18(b)
BUE RN 8(a)
FEUA
HEDE - BE KRB

DERFIELEEER

(W) /B8 6
HERBARZ

(Yezk) /518 20(b)(ii)
TEREE AR A

EHM T RFEX 8(b)
LEELEE

FEEm), S

B 5 N E A R U R IE R A

B 5 N E e~ FE

#an, Crd)

RE (A EERS
ERPTEH

REES (TR BEE
BEFE

REEE
BEME - BER

B PANEN
HEMZE - BE &

SR PTS FRIE
TR EFRIA 2 5K
HENBEARIEHEERE

Z TS RIR 20(b)(i)
HEEDHARFIELE
BEMIER RS
BB ARELENR S
kB & EEIEBE
FBULEE — B A R AT
MR MRS EEIER 30(i)
B — R B AR
BRAMRZ ZP A

I E B A RBFTS IR -
HBREHERS
MHE—HEHEAR]
FTYER B0 1% &
BEBRITFIORD, (L)
B UERFILE

RETHELERS TR

(Expressed in RMB)  (AAREFIR)

2015 2014
—E—RE —ZE—UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
(restated)
(FEE3)
(631,217) (409,202)
29,943 42,540
312,288 263,374
133,903 51,967
48,732 29,336
(530) (250)
(8,720) 25,599
(39,409) 6,105
1,772 =
(14,392) 139
82,823 80,131
41,535 (51,293)
(43,272) 38,446
(1,875) (70)
] @45147) 88376
(65,309) (8,570)
10,684 5,875
- (1,001)
82,027 -
24,202 36,000
(400) =
3,275 -
(517) =
(4) 35,000
- 28,000
2,906 (8,350)
530 250
57,394 97,204

F558F 155 BT AR BHRER 2 —35D °
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MEHEETMER

for the year ended 31 December 2015 #HBZE—FT—HFT-_A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (LAAR¥EZI7R)

Financing activities
Proceeds of new bank and other loans

Repayment of bank and other loans

Proceeds from the issuance of shares,
net of transaction costs

Proceeds from the issuance of
secured notes, net of transaction costs

Proceeds from the issuance of
convertible bonds, net of
transaction costs

Payments for acquisition of
non-controlling interests
in a subsidiary

Finance costs paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

The notes on pages 55 to 155 form part of these financial

statements.
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Note
iz

29(c)(ii)

25

26

22

22

165 B s A F ¥Rk 2 — &7

2015 2014
—ZE—-1 £|E —_=Z=—q E'E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
(restated)

(#eE75)

313,359 399,300
(442,934) (526,588)
156,964 -
118,683 -
59,278 -
- (30,000)
(29,914) (29,336)
175,436 (186,624)
187,683 (561,044)
6,858 57,902
1,091 -
195,632 6,858




CORPORATE INFORMATION

Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited (formerly
Changfeng Axle (China) Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 21 August 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company were
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 September 2010. The
consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2015 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”).

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacture and sale of axles and related
components, and the trading of goods through
operation of an electronic distribution platform,
mobile applications and other related means in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). A summary of
the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015 comprise the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except for derivative
financial instruments which are stated at their
fair values (see Note 2(f)).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held-
for-sale are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell (see
Note 2(w)).

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed
in Note 3.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015,
the Group had incurred net loss of
RMB614,953,000 and net cash used in
operating activities of RMB45,147,000.
Notwithstanding the net loss and net cash
used in operating activities for the year
ended 31 December 2015, the directors of
the Company do not consider that material
uncertainties related to events or conditions
exist which, individually or collectively, may
cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern. This is because (i)
of the net loss for the year ended 31 December
2015, BRMB446,191,000 was attributable to
write-down of inventories, and impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment, lease
prepayments and receivables, which do not
involve any payment of cash; and (i) based
on a cash flow forecast of the Group for the
twelve months ending 31 December 2016
prepared by the management, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the Group
will have adequate funds to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due at least twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 EBX

(b)

BT ER 2R Y 5

(B 2ABESN - AAREIIR)
BETBER ()

BB RANFEREE ()

BE-_ZT—AF+-A=1+—BILFE K&
B ELEEFEE AR 614,953,000 7T M 45 &
EBFT AR & FE AR 45147,0007T © B
FREE-_ZE—FHF+-_A=1+—HILFE
HEEEFERKEEHMAFRS AR
RIEEUTRAEHBEGHIRBBEHERT
HEREERS LAY ERERISELCEMEE
NELERER - WA AENEE_Z—RF
+-—A=+—BIFEBEFEP  ARE
446,191,000 702K B N# M 38 & T 7 E#
B WE - BEREE  ENEERERER
FE R()VBREEEBRENAERHEZ -
—NF+-_A=+—HItt-—EANBEELRE
AR KRR EERAAEEEERREESR
REHRBTEL T AABTERSHEE -
At © KRR BEEZR AR E S LSRR
EUBHERTIBES °

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS a



Notes to the Financial Statements

LR ST E e

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group.

o Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee
benefits: Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-
2012 Cycle

° Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-
2018 Cycle

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented. The
Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of those
equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those equity interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
equity interests in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any equity interests retained
in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2()
(i), unless the investment is classified as held-
for-sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held-for-sale) (see Note 2(w)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the
acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii). Goodwill
arising on a business combination is allocated
to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(f)

(9)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Plant and buildings 20 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Motor vehicles and 3-5 years

other equipment
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the estimated useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed
and ready for its intended use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Expenditure on research and development
activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see Note 2(j)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated

useful lives are as follows:
Domain name 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group
Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Payments made on the acquisition
of land held under an operating lease
are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see
Note 2(j)(ii). Amortisation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of
impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss
events:

= significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in payments;

- it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; and

= significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, for trade
and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective
group.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables
(continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in
respect of receivables, whose recoveries
is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against the receivables
directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written
off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an
operating lease;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’'s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAEFEE(E)
(CONTINUED)
() Impairment of assets (continued) () ZEEREGE)
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) HaEEREE)

(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are
recognised.

BB E &R
M—IREEXEMBRCELELL
MREERNEATKEESHE @ A
BamRERRERE REELE
UHERANBEBEELEEE N
i mMAbDEERSELBM (K
—HEMN) ERHENREE
H A& AR bt PR E A B8 (S — 4
B)HMEEMNKEE  HEZE
ERREENDREEREERNQ
FERFEEKA (A E) S fEA
EE(AEE) -

=

1]

R ER B
PAZENINEEMNS @ WARE
FE AJ U [E & 2R A fib 5T H 3R A A &
B AeRmRERE FHERE
HYRE BRI B A o

WMEBRBELRNZEENRE
1B BAEEFE Y EERZ TR
EEE MR - BIEE IR DR
BEFEARSR -

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @



Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

(B2 A - AARKT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial year
(see Notes 2())(i) and 2(j)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This
is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at
the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and/or the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

(m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 2())(i)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 2(j)(i)).

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which do not contain an
equity component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition the derivative component
of the convertible bond is measured at fair
value as derivative financial instruments (see
Note 2(f)). Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the derivative
component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to
the issue of the convertible bond are allocated
to the liability and derivative components in
proportion to the allocation of proceeds. The
portion of the transaction costs relating to
the liability component is recognised initially
as part of the liability. The portion relating
to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently
remeasured in accordance with Note 2(f). The
liability component is subsequently carried
at amortised cost. The interest expense
recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective
interest method.

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts
of the derivative and liability components are
transferred to share capital and share premium
as consideration for the shares issued. If the
bond is redeemed, any difference between the
amount paid and the carrying amounts of both
components is recognised in profit or loss.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value, and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present
values.

The Group’s contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are charged
to profit or loss when incurred, except to
the extent that they are included in the
cost of inventories not yet recognised
as an expense or cost of construction in
progress not yet transferred to property,
plant and equipment.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from
open market. The net consideration
paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held under share award scheme”
and deducted from equity.

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company’s shares on
grant date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value of
the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment
of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to business combinations,
or items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

()

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and are
not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any sales discounts.
No revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the
possible return of goods, or continuing
management involvement with the
goods.
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Service income
Service income from the rendering of
services is recognised when the related
services are rendered.

(iii) Interestincome
Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in
the statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching
to them. Grants that compensate
the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held-for-sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is
classified as held-for-sale if it is highly probable
that its carrying amount will be recovered
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of
assets to be disposed of together as a group
in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held-for-sale when the above
criteria for classification as held-for-sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain
a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after
the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS Ak My it

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Non-current assets held-for-sale

(x)

(continued)

Immediately before classification as held-for-
sale, the measurement of the non-current
assets (and all individual assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date in
accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification
as held-for-sale and until disposal, the non-
current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. The
principal exceptions to this measurement
policy so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets and financial assets (other
than investments in subsidiaries). These assets,
even if held-for-sale, would continue to be
measured in accordance with the policies set
out elsewhere in Note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification
as held-for-sale, and on subsequent
remeasurement while held-for-sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-
current asset is classified as held-for-sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held-for-sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015

2

EX

(w)

(x)

SETBER ()

FEHEZFRBEE (&)

ERDBERFTELE 2R FRPEE (R
SHATFANEREERAR) ZFEAD
RIBR D BRIFTRAZ @5t EREREF - 1RD
BRFFELEREEHENH  FRBDEE
(NPt TEERSN) s EERIIRE R
B K AR E AT NEIEEDR %
SAERERERAKE AR NS BRERPH
—LBEBMPIIN  EULEERBEENIRE
E BHBERRREZINEHMEE - BLE
ERERHELE - hEB KR 2P ATt e
SRTBURATE °

MRDERFERERERNENFTEMESE
HREE B ERRPER - —B—HERD
BEROBEARFHELBIERFLENT
SHEAF - ZRIFRBDEENTBIHRTER
H3H -

B A &
@ MEATFAL DZALIZALZM
BN EE A R

) EHISAREGIAEE
i) HAKEEEATE X

(i) RAEEFAEEHFQRNEEZE
BEKE -



2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Related parties (continued)

()

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group.

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(@).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of a
group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel
services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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(BRBEHEIN - UARES|R)

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

(@)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies

In applying the Group’s accounting poalicies,
the directors of the Company have made the
following significant judgement:

(i) Identifying the accounting acquirer in
a business combination
As mentioned in Notes 29 and 30,
during the year the Company issued
610,606,000 ordinary shares to various
investors (including the second largest
shareholder before this issuance) which
resulted in Century Investment (Holding)
Limited (“Century Investment”), a new
investor, became the largest shareholder,
and the previous largest and second
largest shareholders becoming the
second and third largest shareholders
respectively. In addition, the Company
issued an additional 122,121,000
ordinary shares as consideration to
acquire 51% equity interests in Century
Network Holding Limited (“Century
Network”), a company then owned by
Century East Network Limited (“Century
East”), a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
Century Investment.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting policies
(continued)

@i

Identifying the accounting acquirer in
a business combination (continued)
The Group concluded that the above
acquisition is a business combination
where the Company is the accounting
acquirer and Century Network is the
accounting acquiree and, accordingly,
reverse acquisition accounting is not
applicable. In coming to this conclusion,
the factors taken into account by the
Company’s directors included the
following:

— The above share issuance and
acquisition were initiated by
the Company and represented
an opportunity for the Group
both to introduce a long-term
strategic investor which could
bring in new capital and also to
diversify its business. The Group
intends to maintain the continuity
of its existing business after the
acquisition.

- Although Century Investment
has the largest equity interests
in the Company, it neither
controls the board of directors
nor the shareholders’ meetings
of the Company. The combined
shareholding of the two major
shareholders of the Company
before the share issuances
exceeds the shareholding of
Century Investment.

- The newly acquired business
was at a start-up stage and only
represented a new business
opportunity for the Group, and
despite the different business
nature, its size is relatively small
when compared to the Group’s
existing business.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

B TSR 2R Y T

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

3  ERHE R (&)

(a) EARTEENSHBERNEZSEHE (&)

(i)

- FWENEBERESEE

REBSHHEBBISTUIBS (F)

AEBELERRE  LHREAEER
G ARAAEEAERNKE
75 i Century Network A&t #ERE &
MWW ES - Bt TERARAKEE
TR o REBULAW  ARREFAN
ZEMNEZBENAT

- LR BETREBEAREEE

W RAREES|IARGERHESHE
MR EE R T R TFAH
B o AEBEERNKBERRERE
TERERH -

= &% Century Investment AR A B

AR ARHE - B0 R AR A T
B MRERD - RIRHEITA
AR 2 AR A & O 2 38 Century
Investment 2 A&HE °

RIAE
ERARBHEBEHE  BAXK
HE AR - EAREERERFAEL
HARRARSE

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS @



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Notes 27 and 31 contain information about
the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to fair value of shares awarded under share
award scheme and financial instruments. Other
key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

(i) Impairment of tangible and intangible
assets
If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a tangible or an intangible
asset may not be recoverable, the asset
may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised.
The carrying amounts of tangible and
intangible assets are reviewed periodically
or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable
amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level
of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level
of revenue and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates
could have a significant impact on the
recoverable amount of the assets and
could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future
periods, where applicable.

(ii) Write-down of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. The
management estimates the net realisable
value based on all available information,
including the current market information
of the inventory items. Any changes
in these estimates would increase or
decrease the amount written-down or
reversal of amount written-down.
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3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND 3 EFHERM&E (E)

ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

(iii) Impairment of receivables
The management maintains an allowance
for doubtful accounts for estimated
losses resulting from the inability of the
debtors to make the required payments.
The management bases the estimates
on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and
historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of the debtors were
to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be
higher than estimated.

Deferred tax assets are recognised
for unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deferred
tax assets can be utilised. In determining
the amount of deferred tax assets to
be recognised, significant judgement is
required relating to the timing and level
of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies.
The amount of deferred tax assets
recognised at future dates are adjusted if
there are significant changes from these
estimates.

CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS
AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES

The following tables disclose the adjustments that
have been made by the directors of the Company in
order to rectify the errors stated in Note 4(a) to each
of the line items in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and
the changes in presentation of comparatives that
have been made by the directors of the Company as
stated in Note 4(b).
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

4 CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS
AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended

31 December 2014

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other loss

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Research and development costs

Impairment losses

Impairment losses on
trade receivables

Impairment losses recognised in
respect of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment losses recognised in
respect of prepaid lease
payments

Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment
classified as assets held-for-sale

Loss from operations
Finance costs
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss before taxation
Income tax

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year

Loss per share

Basic and diluted (RMB)
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2014
2014  Effect of prior (after prior
(as previously year's year's Changes in 2014
reported)  adjustments  adjustments)  presentation  (as restated)
“E-mE
—E-NF BREE (BAFE “E-MF
(%AI5IR) RNy e HEH) 27585 (&E51)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR®Tr ARETTT ARETT  ARET
(Note 4(a)) (Note 4(b))
GEZE) (MizE4()
WA 336,928 = 336,928 = 336,928
HEKA (298,243) (32,695) (330,938) - (330,939)
ZA 38,685 (32,695) 5,990 - 5,990
A (3,056) - (3,056) (20,884) (23,940)
HE RN HFEX (20,529) - (20,529) - (20,529)
TR (62,802) = (62,802) 8,619 (54,183)
iR (17,725) - (17,725 = (17,725)
AEBE - - - (263,374) (263,374)
B ARG IERESE
(20,080) - (20,080) 20,080 -
ERN G
BRERRERE
(55,764) (103,006) (158,770) 158,770 -
BEEHEZ OB
VG |
- (123,501) (123501) 123501 -
NEARELEEEN
% BERREL
BRETREFERD
26,712 - 26,712 (26,712) -
ReFB (114,559) (259,202) (373,761) = (373,761)
RARKA ) (29,336 - (29,336) - (29,336)
LE-RNBAR EE (6,105) = (6,105) = (6,105)
BB AIEE (150,000) (259,202) (409,202) = (409,202)
FriEHt 270 - 270 - 270
FRABERZERALE
(149,730) (259,202) (408.932) - (408,932)
BFALEE:
RAAERRE (152,449) (259,202) (411,651) - (411,651)
SRR 2,719 = 2,719 = 2,719
EREERZARALE
(149,730) (259,202) (408,932) - (408,932)
SRER
HEAREE(ARE) 0.19) 0.33) (0.52) - (0.52)
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CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS 4 BAFEEREFIRKBEFTZ5|2%E (E)
AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated statement of financial position at N-EB—MNE+=-A=1+— ANESBBHR IR
31 December 2014

2014
2014 Effect of prior (after prior
(as previously year's year's  Changesin 2014
reported) adjustments adjustments) presentation (as restated)
“B-mE
“E-mE BAEE (BEEE —E-ME
(% BI51%) AENyE #ER) 2588 (&E5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETEH
(Note 4(a)) (Note 4(b))
(M 4) (MizE4()
Non-current assets ARBEE
Property, plant and equipment nE - BEREE 302,098 (103,006) 199,092 = 199,092
Lease prepayments BNREHE 208,763 (123,501) 80,262 - 80,262
Prepayment for acquisition BEMREATE
of machinery o 236 = 236 = 236
Deferred tax assets ERTAEE 145 - 145 - 145
L. B08242  (26507) 219735 . ~...279735
Current assets HEEE
Inventories FE 220,933 (32,695) 188,238 - 188,238
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E Rl - - - 349,344 349,344
Trade receivables BIRMEIER 160,420 - 160,420 (160,420) -
Bills receivables [ENEE 53,079 - 53,079 (53,079) -
Other receivables Hit IR 131,872 - 131,872 (131,872) -
Lease prepayments BNEENE 4378 = 4378 (4,378) =
Assets classified as held-for-sale PRARBENERE 187,644 - 187,544 2,844 190,388
Tax recoverable R EIF 2,439 - 2,439 (2,439) =
Pledged bank deposits EERBRTEN 3,350 - 3,350 - 3,350
Cash and cash equivalents BeKReFEER 6,858 - 6,858 - 6,858
L TT08T8 (32695) 738178 . S 738178
Current liabilities nEEE
Trade and other payables 2o RAMENTIE - - - 246,463 246,463
Trade and bills payables B ORI RENEE 87,919 - 87,919 (87,919) -
Other payables AR 158,544 - 158,544 (158,544) -
Bank and other loans PITRAMER 336,879 - 336,879 (22,799) 314,080
Liabilties classified as held-for-sale ~ DERIFEHERR - - - 22,799 22,799
Income tax payable R FiSH 1,343 = 1,343 = 1,343
BBABS - SeABS S 534685
Net current assets REBEEFE 18618 | (3269%) 153493 - 153493
NET ASSETS BERE 692,430 (259,202) 433,228 - 433,228
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARR G
Share capital KA 53,560 - 53,560 - 53,560
Reserves (FhfE 638,870 (259,202) 379,668 = 379,668
TOTAL EQUITY aEs 692,430 (259,202) 433,228 - 433,228
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4 CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS
AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year ended 31 December 2014

Share capital

Share premium

Shares held under share
award scheme

Capital reserve

Surplus reserves

Other reserve

Accumulated losses

Total equity

iU

B
1RIEH (D 52EeT 8l

RENBRY

EUN
iR
EftfE
ZitER

BES
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BEFEERFIRIBBFEN 228 (F)

BE—Z-—NE+-_A=t+—HLFENGREER

BEIR

2014 Effect of prior
(as previously year’'s 2014
reported) adjustments (as restated)
—E-NE BEEE —E-mF
(ERIFIRR) RENTE (&E5)
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTTL ARBTT ARETT

(Note4(a))

(FizE4(a)
53,560 - 53,560
599,296 - 599,296
(1,627) - (1,627)
226,982 - 226,982
149,020 - 149,020
(7,703) - (7,703)
(327,098) (259,202) (586,300)
692,430 (259,202 433,228




CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS
AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

Notes to the Financial Statements
Mﬁﬁ%%%

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year

ended 31 December 2014

Operating activities
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses
Write-down of inventories
Finance costs
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary
Reversal of impairment losses
on trade receivables
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Release of prepaid lease payments
Impairment losses recognised
in respect of
- trade receivables
—advance to suppliers
- inventories
- property, plant and equipment
- prepaid lease payments
Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment
classified as assets held-for-sale

Changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventories
Decrease in trade and

other receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease in bills receivables
Decrease in other receivables
Decrease in trade and bill payables

Decrease in other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (Br BB - UARETR
4 PAFEEZHFEIRLKEBHFTEY 225 ()
BE—Z-—NMNE+-_A=+—HLFENZFEES
RER
2014
2014 Effect of prior (after prior
(as previously year's year's  Changes in 2014
reported)  adjustments adjustgment;) presentation  (as restated)
—E-[
“E-NE BEEE (BEEE —Z-mEF
(%AIFIR) AEpye HER) 2588 (&E5)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note 4(a) (Note 4(b))
(Bizt4(a) R
LEEE
BHRIESE (150,000) (259,202) (409,202) = (409,202)
LA DR IAIET R
& REH - - - 42 540 42,540
BERR - - = 263,374 263,374
WAEE - - - 51,967 51,967
RARA 29,336 - 29,336 - 29,336
MEBA (250) - (250) - (250)
LENZE  BER
SEER 25,599 = 25,599 - 25,599
HE—HNBARCER 6,105 - 6,105 - 6,105
2SR IERE
BiEED (20,884) - (20,884) 20,884 -
nE - BEk
HIETE 37,016 - 37,016 (37,016) -
BEEEENE 5,524 - 5,524 (5,524) -
e
Vi il
—B SR 20,080 - 20,080 (20,080) =
— R Fﬁ% 2 8,619 - 8,619 (8,619) =
- 19,272 32,695 51,967 (51,967) -
e ER TG 55,764 103,006 158,770 (158,770) -
— & ifﬁi%,*xlﬁ - 123,501 123,501 (123,501)
PERHELEEENNE
W%&D&ﬁzaﬁ%wu
REEERRD
(26,712) - (26,712) 26,712 =
2EESET):
EERD 139 - 139 - 139
25 Rtk
TERD - - - 80,131 80,131
CUNE W AFERD - - - (51,293) (51,293)
B IEMIER D 17,461 - 17,461 (17,461) -
UZERD 34,370 - 34,370 (34,370)
Hitn R 28,300 - 28,300 (28,300)
BH RN RENRE
ol (36,076) - (36,076) 36,076 -
EERFTERD (15,217) - (15,217) 15,217 =
MEELRE 38,446 = 38,446 = 38,446
ERFEH (70) - (70) - (70)
BETHELRETE
38,376 - 38,376 - 38,376

SRIBEEERAHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

4 CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS 4 BAFEERFEREBEFEIN S (E)
AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

Consolidated cash flow statement for the year BE—ZE-—NE+-A=1+—HLEENGERE
ended 31 December 2014 (continued) mER(E)
2014
2014 Effect of prior (after prior
(as previously year’s year's  Changesin 2014
reported)  adjustments adjustment;) presentation  (as restated)
—2-[
—E-|mF BEEE (BEEE —E-MF

(RA5lH)  AROYE B d) 2528 (KE3])
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETL  ARETR

(Note 4(a), (Note 4(b))
(MizE4a) (MizE4()
Investing activities REED
Payments for purchase of property, BENE BER
plant and equipment BB (3,334) - (3,334) (236) (3570)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE « BE k%
plant and equipment ZFTETA 5,875 = 5,875 = 5875
Payments for lease prepayments T ABfEETE (1,001) - (1,001) - (1,001)
Deposits received for disposal of HENBARELEAE
assets classffied as held-for-sale ZBENES 36,000 - 36,000 - 36,000
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary ~ tHE—RKBA R ZFEE 35,000 - 35,000 - 35,000
Depostt received for disposal HE—RRBAG
of a subsidiary Bl s 28,000 - 28,000 - 28,000
Increase in pledged bank deposits BERBBRTEEMN (3,350) - (3,350) - (3,350)
Interest received BKFIE 250 - 250 - 250
Payments for acquisition of machinery ~ BERE 3 (236) - (236) 236 -
Payments for acquisition of e INGE Ry
non-controlling interests R
in a subsidiary (30,000) - (30,000) 30,000 =
Net cash generated from RETHELRLFE
investing activities 67,204 - 67,204 30,000 97,204
Financing activities HEEH
Proceeds of new bank and other loans ~ ¥T3&8R77 R fE 3 399,300 - 399,300 - 399,300
LFASE
Repayment of bank and other loans BRFTRAfET (526,588) - (526,589) - (526,589)
Payments for acquisition of WeE — Tl B A ek
non-controlling interests BRI
in a subsidiary - - - (30,000) (30,000)
Finance costs paid BRFIE (29,336) - (29,336) - (29,336)
Net cash used in financing activities ~ REEBfAREFE (156,624) - (156,624) (30,000) (186,624)
Net decrease in cash and BERBEEEBR R FE
cash equivalents (51,044) - (61,044) - (51,044)
Cash and cash equivalents R-A-AWHEER
at 1 January ReZEER 57,902 - 57,902 - 57,902
Cash and cash equivalents RT-A=+-BNEER
at 31 December Be%EER 6,858 - 6,858 - 6,858
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R M 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS 4 BAFEERFEREBEFEIN S (E)

AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Impairment in respect of property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments
and write-down of inventories in
connection with the Group’s axle and train
businesses

The predecessor auditor’s report issued on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
(the “Group’s 2014 Financial Statements”)
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs was
qualified by the predecessor auditor due to
the predecessor auditor’s inability to satisfy
themselves that certain of the management’s
assumptions were reasonable. These
assumptions related to whether the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and inventories
were impaired or required to be written down
to their net realisable value, respectively.

In view of the concerns that the existing
shareholders and stakeholders, and future and
potential investors of the Company may have
on this matter, the directors of the Company
consider it is necessary to address this matter
appropriately. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company have revisited the information
previously prepared, including but not limited
to the then cash flow forecasts prepared by
the management, and have further investigated
whether any of the Group’s non-current and
current assets were impaired or required to be
written-down as at 31 December 2014.

During this process, the Company, through
various channels, was able to obtain
information that should have been available
during the preparation of the Group’s 2014
Financial Statements. The directors of the
Company consider such additional information,
if made available to the directors of the
Company at that time, would have resulted in
a different conclusion on whether or not the
Group’s non-current and current assets were
impaired or required to be written-down. From
the foregoing, the directors of the Company
concluded that the Group’s 2014 Financial
Statements contained various errors.

(a)

Y3 - BERREURBANBERAENRER
EAKEERRIIEREEENTE MR

AERBEI R BB B RE LR 2K
SEBE_ZT-NF+_A=1T—HLFEEZ
RAPBHRE ((AEE —_F—NFEHBHRE])
T ®RS - TR TR B A ENE R
BzETHRRBAEMKRERR - ZFEBR
HEAKEYE - BERREARFERL D5
AR E S BMOR 2 F R AT IR FHERR -

ENREBRMFERBENE L - RAQT]
AREABREEFREHZEENEL - AR
AESRABEERAZER - Ft - AR A
EEDBRETARENER  BREETR
REREBRUNERRSRIAN - WEE—F
AEAEE TR ERBDEER —F—N
F+ZA=+—HARTRESEMR

ReZziBied - AAAEBSEREESNRE
AEE —T—FER KRR T A ERNER
RAFEZRR - WARBERNE R AR
BRAEMER - RIR R A KBRS MRS
BERDRMELABRMSHTRER - B
AR A RABEERRARE T —F
PSR PFER T =8 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS Rk My it

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHEIN - LUARES|R)

CORRECTION OF PRIOR YEAR’S ERRORS

AND CHANGES IN PRESENTATION OF
COMPARATIVES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Impairment in respect of property, plant
and equipment and lease prepayments
and write-down of inventories in
connection with the Group’s axle and train
businesses (continued)

After taking into account the information
previously used and the newly acquired
information which should have been made
available to the directors of the Company
during the preparation of the Group’s 2014
Financial Statements, the directors of the
Company have estimated the recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets at the greater
of their fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use determined based on revised
cash flow forecasts prepared by the directors
of the Company. Based on the above results,
the directors of the Company concluded
that additional impairment losses on the
Group’s property, plant and equipment
and lease prepayments of approximately
RMB226,507,000 and write-down on
inventories of approximately RMB32,695,000
should have been recorded in the Group’s
2014 Financial Statements.

The errors mentioned above have no effect on
the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 1 January 2014.

Changes in presentation of comparatives
In addition to the adjustments made to
correct prior year's errors mentioned in Note
4(a) above, the directors of the Company
also made certain adjustments to the 2014
comparative figures in order to conform to
current year’s presentation. Such adjustments
were mainly made to group together multiple
line items with similar nature that were
previously disclosed on the face of the primary
statements, so as to make the face of those
statements clearer and more concise. The
details of the relevant items have been retained
in the notes to the financial statements.
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EI AR A E R N AR 85 E A AR AR IR A
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% WE N RE R TENEERENEINREE
1849 A R 226,507,000 7T R 17 EHUB LA R
#% 32,695,000 JLIE AT AREE =T — Y F B 75

b o
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
manufacture and sale of axles and related
components, and the trading of goods through
operation of an electronic distribution platform,
mobile applications and other related means in
the PRC.

The Group’s customer base is diversified.
There were three customers with whom
transactions exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: two customers). Revenue from sales to
these customers amounted to RMB75,655,000
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB126,884,000). Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from the Group’s customers
are set out in Note 31(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed below.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines
of business. In view of the acquisition of a
new line of business through the acquisition
of a subsidiary as mentioned in Note 30,
namely the E-commerce business for the
operation of an electronic distribution platform,
and the suspension of the train and railway
business, the management of the Group
has revisited the Group’s future strategies
and has decided to change the way in how
information is to be reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. The three operating
segments, namely “OEM and related market”,
“Aftermarket” and “Train and railway business”
as previously reported for the year ended 31
December 2014 have been revised into the
following two operating segments for the year
ended 31 December 2015:

° Axle and train business: this segment
manufactures and sells axles and related
components to truck manufacturers and
after-sales services market, and train and
railway components to Russia.

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

ARSI RE

(BRBERBS - AAREFITR)

5 WARDEHRE

(@)

(b)

A
AEETEEPRETERARENRIHESE
RIERAZER - REBRELETHIHETE B
BEARAREMHERT AR SEM

AEBNEFERZEL HZZRFHRS
BeAEERHE—_T-—AF+-_A=+—Hit
EFWANI0% (ZE—NE: MERF) o
REEZZ—AHAFT+_A=1+—HILFE ' ¥
ETZERPEANKALARET5,655,000
TT(=—Z—pO4F : AR¥126,884,0007T) ° 2K
BAEERFE ZEHR EERBFIBEIINHIE
31(a) °

BRAASEIZEXRBNE-—FSHFBEERT
7 o

7P E

AEBEmEBRERELEL - ERHEI0M
AE B U — TR M B & R P B RO 3R 75 - B
REBTDHTEZETRERBARP IS
BRERERY  AREEEECENEEAE
B E) R RS - WEIREE AR SN EEIR
KEHERIE B 0 M R AS B &SR THRE R
ABREBERHTN - ZAINBE—F—MF
T A=t BLFERREN=AKLLDH
(BNTOEM K A8RAT™ 5] ~ [#EE™M 5 | AR [ 5IIE
FERER] BERIRBE_T A+
A=+—BILFENATMIERLE S :

s HRRIEBEXRYE: ZoMBERARE
SUEBMREEMSHEER/MEETSE
- RASRER LSS B REE T -
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrBAHEAIN - LAARKES?

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

° E-commerce business: this segment
trades goods through an electronic
distribution platform, mobile applications
and other related means.

No operating segments have been aggregated
to form the above reportable segments.

(i) Segment results, assets and

liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s
most senior executive management
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated
to the reportable segments with
reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by
those segments. No inter-segment sales
have occurred for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014. The Group’s
other operating expenses, such as selling
and distribution expenses, administrative
expenses, research and development
costs, impairment losses and finance
costs, are not measured under individual
segments. The measure used for
reporting segment result is gross profit/
(loss).

Segment assets and liabilities include all
assets and liabilities with the exception
of assets and liabilities classified as held-
for-sale, bank and other loans, secured
notes, convertible bonds and unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities.

Comparative figures have been adjusted
to conform to the current year’s segment
presentation.

Information regarding the Group’s
reportable segments as provided to
the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is
set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R M 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5 WARD RS ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZWFHE(E)
() Segment results, assets and (i) 2HEE EEREE(H)
liabilities (continued)
2015
—E-E1F
Axle and train E-commerce
business business Total
BHER EY
FEES S HMEER et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARET R AR¥TR
Revenue from external REMPEEHBA
customers and reportable RuHEIBERA
segment revenue 127,183 43,172 170,355
Reportable segment gross loss TR %2 HEE (159,131) (674) (159,805)
Reportable segment assets ARETDEE 189,824 342,551 532,375
Reportable segment liabilites ~ F#R&E 2 HEE 126,143 24,014 150,157
2014
—=—E
Axle and train
business
HiER
IEES
RMB’000
ARETIT
(restated)
(&E5)
Revenue from external customers and REIIMBEFHBAR
reportable segment revenue CIE 5= 1 ON 336,928
Reportable segment gross profit AR E D HBER 5,990
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 856,886
Reportable segment liabilities ARG HEE 233,969

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS e



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5 WARD RS ()
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) ZWFHE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable (i) AHREIBEEREBENHIER
segment assets and liabilities
2015 2014
—E-RE — P4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT T
(restated)
(&E5)
Assets EE
Reportable segment ARG DRI EE 532,375 856,886
assets
Assets classified as DERREHENEE
held-for-sale 240,920 190,388
Unallocated head office AOBBHERAREE
and corporate assets 54,950 622
Elimination of receivables &5 3B & IPEBEIB 2
between segments, fE FE MR TB A 484
and segments and
head office (52,127) (29,983)
Consolidated total assets 4R & 4E& &= 776,118 1,017,913
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment AmEDHEE
liabilities 150,157 233,969
Bank and other loans HRIT R EME K 171,904 314,080
Liabilities classified DERFIELENEE
as held-for-sale 167,278 22,799
Secured notes HEMARE 128,271 =
Convertible bonds T%k@# 80,409 -
Unallocated head office AN e S ENCIN =K =
and corporate liabilities 58,135 43,820
Elimination of payables %’ﬁﬁﬂ&“*lﬁﬁﬁ%‘ #
between segments, 2 TR 5k
and segments and ki
head office (52,127) (29,983)
Consolidated total liabilities 4R & A B & 704,027 584,685
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HFHER

Except for revenue of RMB2,364,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2014 which
was generated from sales to a customer
in Russia, the Group’s remaining revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2014
and all revenue for the year ended 31
December 2015 were generated from
sales to customers in the PRC. All non-
current assets of the Group are located in
the PRC.
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B RS ER R M 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

OTHER INCOME/(LOSS)

6 HWA(E#8)

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(restated)
(#eE5)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of HEME - BERE&ER
property, plant and equipment DEEFEREEEZ
and assets classified s/ (E18) %58
as held-for-sale 8,720 (25,599)
Government grants BT B 950 8,326
Net loss on sales of scrap materials HEBRM 2 BEFRE - (15,144)
Others A (172) 8,477
9,498 (23,940)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 7 HEEE
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—uF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
(restated)
€=
Impairment losses on property, Yz - BEREEZ
plant and equipment (Note 13) WEEE (M 13) 53,675 132,058
Impairment losses on lease TENEERIEZ
prepayments (Note 14) MEEE (MisE 14) - 128,501
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 K E At EUGRIARY
other receivables (Note 19(b)) MEEE (K1EE19(0)) 262,643 7,815
Reversal of impairment losses on TENHEEKIE 2 R E
lease prepayments (Note 14) EEEE (st 14) (4,030) =
312,288 263,374
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B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

8 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8 KREAIESE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: MR AT E R A TN R IARES ¢
2015 2014
—E2-HfF —ZE-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
(a) Finance costs: (a) MELX:
Interest on bank and other loans RITREMERFE 20,410 29,336
Finance charges on BHERERIBER
secured notes 10,426 -
Finance charges on convertible AIMREFMEE R
bonds (Note 26) (BtzE26) 5,810 -
Total borrowing costs BEKAEE 36,646 29,336
Net foreign exchange gain SN W a F ER 896 -
Changes in fair value on the AMRESFITETA
derivative components of o R TEEE
convertible bonds (Note 26) (Ff5E26) 11,190 =
48,732 29,336
No borrowing costs have been capitalised for HE_Z—AFT_HA=+—HLEFE ITEEX
the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: {EEFEA(ZE—F - AREZT) °
RMBNIil).
2015 2014
—E2-1fF —E-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
(restated)
€ <=27l))
(b) Staff costs’: (b) BIZA*:
Salaries, wages and e TEREAMET
other benefits 72,065 53,417
Contributions to defined MR E - FERIK
contribution retirement plans FTEIHER 4,717 2,923
Equity-settled share-based B BT B R
payment expenses in respect HEE RN BER 2
of share award scheme R (FisE27)
(Note 27) 1,772 -
78,554 56,340
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b) Staff costs*: (continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong) participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes managed by the
local government authorities, whereby these
subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
schemes at rates ranging from 18% to 20%
of the employees’ basic salaries. Employees
of these subsidiaries are entitled to retirement
benefits, calculated based on a percentage of
the average salaries level in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong), from the above mentioned
retirement schemes at their normal retirement
age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to
make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) 30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to
June 2014). Contributions to the MPF Scheme
vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond
the above contributions.
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#%325,000787C) RMR o H5RTE S 1F h H HKE]

B o

BR{EH Bt e 2 R4 - AR B B AR A
RIREFEE — FERNRER -

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS @



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

8 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8 KEAEE(E)
2015 2014
—E-AfF —Z=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
(restated)
(#&E7))
(c) Other items: (c) EMEE :
Cost of inventories’ (Note 18(b)) FERA (H5E 18(b)) 329,831 330,348
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN € 2,100 1,347
Depreciation and amortisation® PrE R

(Notes 13, 14 and 15) (ffzE13 ~ 14 & 15) 29,943 42,540

Operating lease charges in BAMENKEHEER
respect of properties 6,917 138

# Cost of inventories includes RMB28,656,000 7
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB51,449,000), relating to staff costs, and
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which
amount is also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note
8(b) for each of these types of expenses.

9 INCOME TAX 9 B
(@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of (@)

profit or loss and other comprehensive income

represents:

Current taxation - PRC ERHE - PR EEMEH
Corporate Income Tax:

Under-provision in respect BRABRTFEREDE
of prior years

Deferred taxation IEFERIE (MizE28(a)) -
(Note 28(a)):

Origination and reversal of Tt =R ES KEE

temporary differences

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015

REF-_F—FFE+-_F=+—HAIFEAN FE
KR BN R #28656,000T (= F—PI4% : AR
51,449,0007C ) FAE T AU RITE R HFH SR - H
Bi& BB E BIFHE_F K ML 8(b) 7 5t & 487 = 17 7
I EAEEEA -

rAREMEMEERERANMERG

2015 2014
=F-1fF —TIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
(restated)

(&)

- 70
(16,264) (340)
(16,264) (270)




9

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

Loss before taxation

Expected tax on loss before
taxation, calculated at the
rates applicable to profits in

the

BT Al B 1R

jurisdictions concerned

(Notes (i), (i) and (iii))

Tax effect of non-deductible

expenses

Tax effect of deductible
temporary differences

not recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses

not recognised

Under-provision in respect

of prior years

Income tax FriSHi
Notes:
(i) The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group

(i)

(i)

()

incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% for the year ended
31 December 2015 (2014: 16.5%). No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the
Group incorporated in Hong Kong did not have
assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB Nil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the
Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, respectively, are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 25%).

One of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the
PRC has obtained approvals from the relevant
tax bureau to be taxed as an enterprise with
advanced and new technologies for the calendar
years from 2013 to 2015 and therefore enjoyed
a preferential PRC Corporate Income Tax rate
of 15% for the year ended 31 December 2015
(2014: 15%).
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9 FREH (&)

b) BEMXEESERZERNRFTENEHE

RRGERNA DA E S Em A
MR R S E R AT B IR A TR
MR (M EE () ~

(i) K (iii) )

OB SFEETY 7

RERATMRYEEER
COpizh 2

RERAM BB BERORG T E
BRAEFERETR

it -

(i)

(i)

(i)

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—y4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
(restated)

(#&=:51)
(631,217) (409,202)
(149,972) (101,588)
222 1,723

98,851 78,795
34,635 20,730

- 70
(16,264) (270)

AR F] R BB 1 K5 BB 2 7R 2
BoFE—AF = A=1—HIFEEE16.5%
(ZF—4F : 16.5%) H95 KN EEFZH o

BRAR 7] R A EBRE Bt L AN B 2 7]
REBEE-F—FFE+-HA=1+—HIFEHER

EBaT 1R G (—F—HF - ARKZET) »

BRIREEEE R EBELFEEZMA L AR
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R R EAR BB E TR

KEFRPE (T EIEEE) K7 I8 2 al &
BEoE AT A= —HILFEEZ25%(=
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BB —F—=FF - T L FFF A
BARMLEEET Al REZE=F—AF
+ = A=+ —HIFFEEPE P ERHERH
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 10. EEH
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIFEFB RN FUEHIE 383N IR AR (FEEERE
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BERDRPIFE 2 HENESEHMMOT ¢

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2015
=S
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total payments Total
B 28 HRHH
EShe  RENEA MEFL  BiREMS Nt BBBRR Eh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMFR  ARNTR  ARWTR  ARWTR  ARBTR  ARETR

(Note 27)
(HzE2)

Executive directors YrEs
Mr. Cheng Jerome (appointed ~ Cheng Jerome 564 (1A =51

on 25 March 2015) = AZtRAEZH) - 666 29 - 915 - 915
Mr. Yuan Wetao (appointed REERE(N-Z-1F

on 25 March 2015) ZAZTRAEEfR) - 624 - # 665 - 665
Mr.Wong KwaiMo (esigned ~ THEERAE(W-F-1%

on 25 March 2015) ZA-TRHEE) - - - - - - -
Ms. Wu Ching (resigned fat (M50

on 16 June 2015) NATHBREE) - 288 - - 288 - 288
Mr. Lai Fengeal (resigned BEREE(N=3-1F

on 25 March 2015) ZAZTRARE) - 395 - 15 40 1,712 2,182
Non-executive directors FTES
Mr. Feng Xiaohui (appointed BBAE(R=F-1F

on 25 March 2015) ZA-TRHEZA) - - - - - - -
Ms. Guo Yan (appointed Pat(N=5-1F

on 25 March 2015) ZA-ThREZRA) - - - - - - -
Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy ERRT(NZF—E

(resiqned on 17 February 2016) ~ —A++BEHT) - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors
Mr. Wong Ohi Keung (appointed &2 84 (W=2- 1%

on 25 March 2015) ZRZTRREEfR) - 185 - - 185 - 185
Mr. Liu Erhfel appointed SRt (R_T-1%

on 25 March 2015) =BT RAEEfR) - 185 - - 185 - 185
Mr. Chan Chi Keung, Alan RERiE(W-3-1F

(aopointecion 25 March 2015) = A= RARE() - 185 - - 185 - 185
Mr. Zhu Weizhou (resigned REMEE(N=2-1%F

on 25 March 2015) ZRZTRART) - 20 - - 20 - 20
Dr. Li Xiuging (resigned SARRT(NZ3-1E

on 25 March 2015) ZA-TRHER) - - - - - - -
Mr. Chong Ching Hei (esigned ~~ $FEE A4 (W=5-0%

on 25 March 2015) ZAZTRART) - 20 - - 20 - 20

- 2,568 249 56 2813 1,112 4,645
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

10 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 10. EZHH (&)

2014
—Z—F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
2 He 2R 48
e ENiEAl BTt HEGS @5t

RVB'OO0O ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL

Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Wong Kwai Mo THERE - 1,236 - 12 1,248
Ms. Wu Ching FiEes - 1,236 = 12 1,248
Mr. Lai Fengcai RREREE - 600 - 17 617
Non-exeutive director FBTES
Ms. Dong Ying, Dorothy ERUT = = = = =
Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors
Mr. Zhu Weizhou KEMEE - 81 - - 81
Dr. Li Xiuging EHEET = = = = =
Mr. Chong Ching Hei HESEE - 81 - - 81

= 3,234 = 41 3,275

Except for two directors, Mr. Wong Kwai Mo and Dr.
Li Xiuging, who waived emoluments of RMB288,000
and RMB20,000, respectively, in 2015 (2014: Dr. Li
Xiuging waived RMB81,000), none of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year ended 31
December 2015. In addition, no remuneration were
paid by the Group to any of the directors as an
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year.

BREEETEBEEREREHELIR _ZE—1F
7 Bl EE 5 B A R 288,000 7T & A K # 20,000 7T

—ET—UF : EHEBFH I HEARES1,0007T)
Gy BEEENEE _T—AE+-_A=+—Hit
FEAREEME o I - KEBRF ABEER
BEL NS ARSI HEINBEAEE S EA AR
K AEE) Sk BR B (E o

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

11 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 11 BSFHMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, hEZBEeHFALTH EF=F(ZFT—NF: =F&)
three (2014: three) are directors whose emoluments BEE FEZHEMRHMT10HE - ESfmAIEE
are disclosed in Note 10. The aggregate of the EMALT(ZZE—NE - ML) FMETHT -

emoluments in respect of the remaining two (2014:
two) individuals who are not directors are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Salaries, allowances and e R REYRE
benefits in kind 1,132 636
Discretionary bonuses FOTEIEAL 149 =
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIHE5R 73 27
1,354 663
The emoluments of the two (2014: two) individuals AEERERETHNATHIIEESTAMBAL(ZE
who are not directors and who are among the five —MEF : RB)EFMT FLATEHE
highest paid individuals of the Group are within the
following bands:
2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E-mEF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
HKS$Nil-HK$1,000,000 =T8T E 1,000,000 7T 2 2
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12 LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

Basic loss per share (a)
The basic loss per share for the year ended

31 December 2015 is calculated based on

the loss attributable to the equity shareholders

of the company of RMB573,978,000 (2014:
RMB411,651,000 (restated)) and the weighted

average of 1,365,447,000 ordinary shares

(2014: 797,168,000 ordinary shares (restated))

in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

Issued ordinary shares R—HA—BEZTHZER
at 1 January

Effect of shares issued to
new equity shareholders of
the Company on
25 March 2015

(Note 29(c)(ii))

RN R FTRE S AR R 31T
& By R2 2 (BTRE 29(c)(ii))

R-ZE—RE=A=-+HBMA

Effect of shares issued on the
acquisition of a subsidiary
on 25 March 2015

R-ZE—HRF=A=-+HH
U B8 — FEI P B 1 BB 37T
i& 10 By 5228 (B =E 29(c) (i)

(Note 29(c)(ii))
Effect of shares purchased and
vested under a share

RIERD B EIEREE
REGFBRDZEE

award scheme (Note 27) (MgzE27)

Weighted average number of R+ZA=+—RE@EK
ordinary shares N2 E
at 31 December

Diluted loss per share (b)

There were no dilutive potential shares
outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2015 and 2014. The Group’s
convertible bonds (see Note 26) could
potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the
future, but were not included in the calculation
of diluted loss per share because they are
antidilutive during the year ended 31 December
2015.

B TSR 2R Y T

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

12 SREE

BREAERE
HE—_T—RF+_A=+—HILEE
BEAEBEZARAEZRREMLEEA
R #573,978,000t( — T — M F: AR
411,651,000 T (KL EF)) RFRNEEHTEB
A% Hn#eE 2 35 £ 1,365,447,000 f% ( = Z — PO 4F :
797,168,000 % L@ (L &ES)) ) 5TET ¢

TmAR AN T &L
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—mF
’000 '000
TR FIR
(restated)
(F&E3)
800,000 800,000
471,756 -
94,351 -
(660) (2,832)
1,365,447 797,168

BR#EER
BE_Z-RFER_FT-WFE+_A=+—H
LFE SEABCESUWENRNETE
Sh o B AREHE S (R 5 26) AT AR RS
BREABZNBRBAES  HEEREE—
T-AFT A=t HALFERABRES
WARAANSREEEEOE -

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BMERRE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) FREEYER
Motor
Machinery vehicles
Plant and and  andother Construction
buildings  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABER

BERET #HEkSk HoXE HRIE aaf
RVB'O00  RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETE AREBTT ARETR ARETL

Cost: B
At 1 January 2014 RZE—m$E—HA—H 390,579 383,626 13,433 10,059 797,697
Additions NE = 3,287 2,649 - 5,936
Transfer in/(out) BA/ (1) - 1,332 - (1,332) -
Reclassified as assets BN EARHE
held-for-sale HERE (127,245) (8,486) (876) - (136,607)
Disposals HE - (41,313) (86) - (41,399)
Decrease through disposal ERNE B
of a subsidiary AFFED (37,582) (771) = = (38,353)
At 31 December 2014 RZT—E
+-A=1+—H 225,752 337,675 15,120 8,727 587,274
Accumulated depreciation R ERAME :
and impairment:
At 1 January 2014 R-E-m&E—f—A (94,5038)  (171,208) (7,952) - (273,660)
Charge for the year FAYH (11,575) (23,761) (1,680) - (37,016)
Impairment losses (restated) REEE (K E5)
(Notes 7 and 13(0)) (HizE7 & 13(0)) (56,374) (68,434) (1,449) (5,801)  (132,058)
Reclassified as assets BN BARE
held-for-sale LEEE 31,343 3,256 569 - 35,168
Written back on disposals HERE - 9,862 63 - 9,925
Decrease through disposal BRI E RS
of a subsidiary NAED 8,746 713 - - 9,459
At 31 December 2014 (restated) H=Z—MNFE+-A
=t+—B(&E75) (122,363)  (249569)  (10,449) (5,801)  (388,182)
Net book value: BRI :
At 31 December 2014 (restated) H=Z—MNFE+-A
=+—B(&=3) 103,389 88,106 4,671 2926 199,092
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

13. 3% - BE KRS (8)

BT ER 2R Y 5

FEAIN - AAREFIR)

(5%

(CONTINUED)
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (@) FREE%IR(HE)
(continued)
Motor
Machinery vehicles
Plant and and  and otherConstruction
buildings equipment equipment in progress Total
AER
BERET HERZE HUtRE HRIE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTR AR®TR AR%TR AR%Tn ARETx
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—h5—HA—H 225,752 337,675 15,120 8,727 587,274
Additions B 2,365 54,856 5,265 1,006 63,492
Additions through acquisition ERWE—REAR
of a subsidiary (Note 30) AE (F13£30) - - 10,332 - 10,332
Reclassified as assets BN EERE
held-for-sale HEEE (149,382)  (147,249) (11,505) (9,733)  (317,869)
Disposals HE - (31,299) (571) - (31,870)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—1%F
+-A=+—H 78,735 213,983 18,641 - 311,359
Accumulated depreciation ZEHERAE
and impairment:
At 1 January 2015 (restated) R-ZE—1F—HA—H
(&E5) (122,363)  (249,569) (10,449) (5,801)  (388,182)
Charge for the year FRAZM (5,547) (14,420) (4,376) - (24,343)
Impairment losses REEE
(Notes 7 and 13(c)) (HIE7 & 13(c) (3,768) (45,978) (1,070) (2,859)  (53,675)
Reclassified as assets ENHBARE
held-for-sale HERE 84,753 142,19 10,817 8,660 246,426
Written back on disposals HER D - 17,709 234 - 17,943
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—REF
+-A=t+-H (46,925)  (150,062) (4,844) - (201,831)
Net book value: BRERE
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—REF
+=-A=1+—~H 31,810 63,921 13,797 - 109,528

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRSARBS - AARESI?

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the directors of the Company revisited the
impairment assessment on the Group’s
cash-generating unit related to its Axle and
train business (the “Axle and Train CGU”)
as at 31 December 2014, and concluded
that the recoverable amount of the Axle and
Train CGU (including property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayments) as at 31
December 2014 to be lower than its carrying
amount. The recoverable amount of the Axle
and Train CGU has been determined on the
basis of fair value less costs of disposal with
reference to the valuation report issued by an
independent valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited.
The independent valuer has adopted the cost
approach on property, plant and equipment
and market comparison approach on lease
prepayments. Accordingly, impairment losses
of RMB132,058,000 and RMB123,501,000
on the Group’s property, plant and equipment
and lease prepayments, respectively, were
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2014. Further details on the correction of prior
year’s errors are set out in Note 4.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, due
to the continuous depressed axle and related
components business in the PRC, the Group
has suspended certain of its production lines
related to this business, and the directors of
the Company concluded further impairment
losses on the Axle and Train CGU is required.
The directors of the Company determined
the recoverable amount of the Axle and Train
CGU on the basis of fair value less costs of
disposal with reference to the valuation report
issued by an independent valuer, Roma
Appraisals Limited. The independent valuer
has adopted the cost approach on property,
plant and equipment and market comparison
approach on lease prepayments. Accordingly,
an impairment loss of RMB53,675,000 on the
Group’s property, plant and equipment and a
reversal of impairment loss of RMB4,030,000
on the Group’s lease prepayments were
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2015.

At 31 December 2015, property certificates
of certain properties with a carrying amount
of RMB132,000 (831 December 2014:
RMB49,804,000) are yet to be obtained.
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13. 3% - BE KRS (8)

(b)

REBE—Z—RAF+-_B=1+—HILEERXN
AAREBETREAEEEHEEBRYIE
E¥BNReELESBMN((EBRIERSESE
BN DR-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—HBHEHE
Ml WISHAR BB NIIEIRESELEEN
(@%%%~%%&&%M&ﬁﬁf%aﬁmﬂ
—ZT-NFE+ - A=+—BHAROLEER
Aﬁﬁﬁ BHERIERSEESBMAA K
O 58 T2 E BB (HERE S BEER T EER
ARIHEZHEREE - UAFER LS/
CEEETF BUGHEMEMYE  BE MK
HIRARAE KBNS R ERA TS &R
EeHI MEE-Z—NF+_A=1+—8
I FEBRREBAEEDE - BEMXERE
{7 & FRIE R R E 1B A K # 132,058,000 7T
M AR®123,501,0007C - B E EBEFE
EIRHE — S BEN TS o

(E—E—RAFt+_A=+— Eﬁiﬁ'm
FREBEBLREESHHESFEISER A%
Eaﬂﬁﬁkﬁﬁm@m%¥$§@1ﬁ B
AAREEHTEERBNYBEREEESNAE
—BREEE - AR R EFLERBUGERM
%%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@@iﬁﬂZ%@ﬁ B
E o UAFEREERA 2 EEETFERF L
BHIEGEABMNMANESEE - B EEME
IYE  BEERRERARAEREENEE
FIBRBATSLEE - Bl REE=-ZF—H
FH+_A=+—HUILFEEREELAEENY
¥ WERXERREREEARES53,675,000
TREBAEEBNHEERBENRESERD
AR 4,030,000 7T °

RZZE—ARAF+_A=1+—H ' HRIEE
HEAARKE132,000T(=ZE—ME+ = ﬂ
=+—08 : AR#49,804,0007T) & T
HIEERERE ©



14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

Cost:
At 1 January 2014
Additions
Reclassified as assets held-for-sale
Decrease through disposal of
a subsidiary

At 31 December 2014

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year
Impairment losses (restated)
(Notes 7 and 13(b))
Reclassified as assets held-for-sale
Decrease through disposal of
a subsidiary

At 31 December 2014 (restated)

Net book value:
At 31 December 2014 (restated)

Cost:
At 1 January 2015
Reclassified as assets held-for-sale

At 31 December 2015

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:
At 1 January 2015 (restated)
Charge for the year
Reversal of impairment losses
(Notes 7 and 13(c))
Reclassified as assets held-for-sale

At 31 December 2015

Net book value:
At 31 December 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

14 FANBERE

2% N
R-—E—mFE—HA—H

NE
ENDBEARBELNEEE
BiE & — B AR
R-E—NF+_—_A=+—H
Rt ERIRE
R-—E—mFE—HA—H
FREH
BEEE (EEF) (M7 & 13(b))
ENOBEARBIELEEE
BRLE—EHEARRS

R-ZE-—OF+-A=+—H(KE5))

BREDFE -
R-ZT—ME+—A=+—H (KE5)

RN

N-—E—hFE—H—H

NN BEARBIELEEE
RZBE—RF+-_A=+—H
TS RORE ¢
RZEBE—RF—HA—H (LE7)
imiﬁ

A ERRE (M7 & 13(c))
ENOBEARBIELEEE
R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—8H

BRI FE -
RZZE—RF+=-HA=1+—H

SERIBEEERAE

R ﬁ%i&%fiﬁﬁi

SEZBAIN - LAREEIR

RMB’000
ARBTT

320,008
1,001
(84,812)

(9,263)

(123,501)
37,798

309

(142,294)

84,640

RMB’000
AR®TR

226,934
(213,108)

(142,294)
(1,807)

4,030
138,006

(2,065)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Represented by: 15 :
Non-current portion IEmENER
Current portion mEnER D

Lease prepayments represented land use right
premiums paid by the Group for leasehold land
situated in the PRC. At 31 December 2015, land
use right certificates of certain land use rights with
a carrying amount of RMBNIl (31 December 2014:
RMB23,787,000 (restated)) are yet to be obtained.

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14 FESHERE(E)

2015 2014
—E-RF —T—UeF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T ARETTT
(restated)

(F&E3)

11,484 80,262
277 4,378

11,761 84,640

FENASHEEAEBRARFRZHE 1B
Mt RELES RN E—AF+-_A=+—
H: MAZDREEEAARES L(ZZ—NF+—
B=+—8 : AR#23787,0007T (&LE5))HHET
+ b s AR Y + S FRAERE o

15 B\BREEE

Domain name

SCE
RMB’000
ARBT T
Cost: B :
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 RZZFE—WOF—H—8 —ZT—0OF

and 1 January 2015 +—A=+t—HR-_ZE—HF—HF—H =
Addition through acquisition of FEBWE B R RARE (HizE30)

a subsidiary (Note 30) 21,917
At 31 December 2015 R_ZE—HF+-_A=+—H 21,917
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 RZZF—WOF—H—QH  —ZT—@0mF

and 1 January 2015 +=—A=+—B8k=ZF—HF—HF—H -
Charge for the year FAZH (3,793)
At 31 December 2015 RZZF—RAF+=-—A=+—H (3,793)
Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December 2015 R-_TE—RFE+_-_A=+—H 18,124

At 31 December 2014

R-ZE—NFE+—-_A=+—H -

The intangible assets represent the Group’s
electronic distribution platform, www.CCIGMALL.
com, which the Group acquired through the
acquisition of a business in 2015 (see Note 30).

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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GOODWILL

Cost:

At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014
and 1 January 2015

Addition through acquisition of
a subsidiary (Note 30)

At 31 December 2015
Accumulated impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014, 31 December

2014, 1 January 2015
and 31 December 2015

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2015

At 31 December 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BA

ARMEE :

BT ER 2R Y 5

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

16 BHE
RMB’000
ARBTT
R-F—OFE—A—R8  —F—0OF+=A
=+—RR-_ZE-—HE—A—H -
FiRWE—HNEB R ARE (iz30)
61,013
PeEEE A 6101
ZRESSE :
RZE—MNFE—A—H —Z—NF
+=A=+—H —ZT—R"F—A—H
r=F-fa%t-A=+-A -
R=F-RF+—A=1—H 61,013

R-ZE—NFE+—-_A=+—H

On 25 March 2015, the Group acquired the
51% equity interests of Century Network for a
consideration of RMB76,392,000 (See Note 30).
The excess of the cost of the purchase over the
net fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired
of RMB61,013,000 was recorded as goodwill and
allocated to the Century Network’s E-commerce
business (the “E-commerce CGU”) (see Note 30).

The recoverable amount of the E-commerce CGU
is determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets prepared by the directors of
the Company covering a five-year period. These
cash flow projections adopted annual growth rates
ranging from 80% to 449%, which are based on
the Group’s experience and future business plans
for this business and adjusted for other factors that
are specific to the E-commerce CGU. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
a 3% long-term growth rate, which is based on the
relevant industry growth forecasts. The cash flows
are discounted using a discount rate of 40%. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the E-commerce CGU.

R-B—AFE=A_+HA  AEEUREBARK
76,392,000 7T Y& Century Network 51% Rs#E ( BB
#£30) - BE AL FTRE A #AI EEFENATF
FERZEEAREG61,013,000 Ttk AR E NS
Z Century Network NEFTEEES((ETHERE
EEEN ) (RKEE30)

EFREESEABMNMIRE S5 HREERE
EtEMETE - ZTEERABRSREBA (ERXBAE
NAEERBEUAEAFHZVBEE) - ZZRHER
=TERIRA80% E4490% M FIER R » EUAEEH
ERAZEERNER R A REBTE AER - Wi
ETHERSEABNBTNEGCEXIELFARE -
HBERFEH RS RS THEE A 3% f B = R HEHT -
iR R BDEREETERREED - B RERE
40% BV HTER RHTIR o BTk A Z 3138 R AR Al M = ik
HETHERSELESBMAE I FERR o

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 REBARZERE
The following list contains only the particulars of TRESIELEEEE  EENBEBEKEZEY
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, ZHMBA RS -

assets or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

FaELD
Particulars of
Place of registered/ ~ The Group’s
establishment/ issued and effective Held by the Held by
Name of subsidiary incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
) i/ aft/EEGR  A%EN HEAH
HELREHE HMeE  SRRAEHE ERER  ARAMRE e TEER
Beiing Century Fortunet Network The PRC RMB3,000,000 51% - 100%  Trading of goods through electronic
Technology Co., Ltd. * distrioution platform, mobile
applications and other related means
IRt RRERRITERAR G AR3,000,00070 ERETHHETR BEERE
AREMEEA AR S En
Beiing Century Fortunet The PRC RMB27,000,000 47.2% = 92.6%  Maintenance of electronic distribution
Technology Co., Ltd. * platform and mobile applications
IRt B RERAT H AR 27,000,007 BRETHETARBIRAEN
Beiing Changfeng Axle Research The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  Research and development of axles
Institution Co., Ltd. * and related components
IRmB eI ERERAR G AR#1,000,0007 PEERRERTHY
Century Network The British United States 51% 51% - Investment holding
VirginIslands ~ Dollar (‘USD’)1
ZEREES 1En(ER) REBR
Fujian Changfeng Machinery Group The PRC RMB814,300,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles and
Limitedl Company * related components
BEGERREEERAT H ARH814,300,0007C SERREERRERTHN
Kaifeng Changfeng Axle Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB375,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles and
(Kaifeng Changfeng’) *(Note) related components
G EERARAR (M) t AR# 375,000,007 HERHEERRARTHY
Kaifeng Changfeng Machinery The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. * (Note) related components
RHPERAREERAR (M) G AEH50,000,0007C HERHERRRERT Y

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT ER 2R Y 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

17 RHBRRZIRE (&)

(CONTINUED)
Proportiqn of ownership interest
FREESTH
Particulars of
Place of registered/ ~ The Group’s
establishment/ issued and effective Held by the Held by
Name of subsidiary incorporation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiaries  Principal activities
B/ ith/BEAIR ALEH HEAR
MEARAR MR SRRAEE BRES  AREMRA fivE  TEER
Longyan Shengfeng Machinery The PRC RMB356,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles and
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. * related components
EEESRAREERAR G A% 356,000,0007C HERHEEERRERT Y
Sichuan Changfeng Axle Co., Ltd. * The PRC RMB160,000,000 100% = 100%  Manufacture and sale of axles
and related components
M GEEEERAR mE AKRE160,000,0007 HERHERRRERT I
* The English translation of the names are for reference * BN EL (B ERER Y EEFE T B HETFAAX -
only and the official names of these entities are in
Chinese.

Note: The Group is committed to a sale plan involving these
subsidiaries. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of
these subsidiaries have been classified as assets held-
for-sale and liabilities held-for-sale, respectively. Further
details are set out in Note 20.

The following table lists out the combined financial
information of Century Network and its subsidiaries, a
sub-group within the Group, which has material non-
controlling interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

Hiet - AEEH ) — IS REZEM B R Ayt Eatd) o Fit
ZEMER A EER B EE D FIA BRI EEE
RIFEHERIE - #— L5 R 20 -

TRIHANEE NG E AR E S ([ I AR
%5 ) B9)K =8 Century Network N EL B A TR E 42
FHER - THHEERBEARIELEMQRMHE
IR S o

2015
—E-fF
RMB’000
ARETR
Revenue (from 25 March 2015 (date of WA(BZE—RF=A=-+HH(KEBH)
acquisition) to 31 December 2015) BEZZT-—AF+ZA=1+—H1) 43,172
Loss for the period (from 25 March HAEE(B=E—RAF=A=1THH
2015 (date of acquisition) to (KRB RE_T—AF
31 December 2015) +=ZA=+—H1) (82,410)
Loss attributable to NCI E Sl g Ty = (40,975)
Non-current assets IEMBNEE 58,571
Current assets MENEE 229,490
Current liabilities mENBaE (19,404)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (317,002)
Net liabilities =N (48,345)
Net liabilities attributable to NCI HEREREGFEE (21,770)

SERIBEEERAE

—B-REEERE
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

18 INVENTORIES

(BRBEHEIN - UARES|R)

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise:

18 #&

(a) HEHMBRARNWEFERRE

2015 2014

—E-HF —ZE—mE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

(restated)

(&E5)

Raw materials FEM R 47,014 137,563
Work in progress ER M 7,496 43,825
Finished goods SR 85,247 58,817
Merchandises for trading RS 14,013 =
153,770 240,205
Less: write-down of inventories & : 17 & U (90,166) (51,967)
63,604 188,238

RZB—RE+-_A=+—0 LdliFEEHA
R#2,824,0007t(—Z—M4F : AREZT)E
WIEAEEEMENRESE RN RRAAEE
BB A alHE AR SR AR IE IR (BB RE23()) ©

At 31 December 2015, RMB2,824,000 (2014:
RMBNIl) of the above inventories were pledged
as securities for on-going litigations where
a subsidiary of the Group is being sued for
payments of previously purchased goods from
suppliers (see Note 23(i)).

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

(b) EERRMAXKRTAGSBEERAMEZEKE

recognised as an expense and included RNGEESEIMAOT :
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income is
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZT-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
(restated)
(#eE75)
Carrying amount of EEFERREAE
inventories sold 195,928 278,381
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 133,903 51,967
329,831 330,348

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (F& 3

BT ER 2R Y 5

FEAIN - AAREFIR)

19 EBSRHEMERRKE

2015 2014
—E-HF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(restated)
(1&E7)
Trade receivables B 5 e EIE 305,721 442 651
Bills receivables e 12,941 53,079
318,662 495,730
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (287,583) (282,231)
31,079 213,499
Prepayments, deposits and FERRE - e R HAEWRFRE
other receivables:
— Advances to suppliers — ST HRERE 2 B 78,658 111,518
— Value added tax refundable —mR[EEER 5,577 17,830
— Others —HAth 36,654 12,804
120,889 142,152
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W RERTEAES (102,478) (6,307)
18,411 135,845
49,490 349,344

All of the trade and other receivables, net of
allowance for doubtful debts, are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expenses within
one year. For trade receivables arising from the
Group’s E-commerce business, cash before
delivery is generally required for all customers.
Trade receivables arising from the Group’s Axle and
train business are generally due within three to four
months from the date of billings.

A 8 5 Ko EL Al R MR TR (HIBR R AR B 48 ) TREAM —
FARELERBAN - RAKEETHERTE
ENEZRYGREMS - IAEPBALEETRIA
RexNER  AREBERRINEXBHELNE
ZREFRBATREEAERE =2EN@EA R
5 o

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the
ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
(net of allowance for doubtful debts), included
in trade and other receivables, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

Within 3 months =EAR

Over 3 months but
within 6 months

Over 6 months

HiB /< fE A

At 31 December 2015, trade receivables
of RMB14,422,000 (31 December 2014:
RMB37,500,000) have been pledged to a bank
to secure the Group’s short-term bank loans
(Notes 24(a) and 24(c)).

Details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in Note 31(a).

Impairment of trade and other receivables
Impairment losses in respect of trade and other
receivables are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against
trade and other receivables directly (see Note

2()(0)-

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015

19 EBSRHAEYRKIE ()

(a)

BE=EA - BLREA

(b)

SRR D T

RBERR - SHAB S REMBERKKIAZE S
FE YR IR M R M R B (INER RERBME) BN B R
HHRRESTIAT

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z Y4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARET T
15,606 83,547
14,821 54,568
652 75,384
31,079 213,499

R-ZZE—AE+-_A=+—0 ' BHEKX
TH AR #14,422000c( —FE—WMFE+— A
=+—H : AR#¥37,500,0007T) B TR
TEAASEBEHRITER ZER (5 24(a)
K. 24(c)) °

AEENEEBRABHNHES1()

8% R H AW IRRE

B REE 5 I H At FE U R IR O R (B S 18 i A
fRiRACER - EAKER SR EIIANKEE K
AIRRSN - HERBER NREBBREREE S REH
fi PR R IR P A (LB EE 2()() ©
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 EFRHAMEWEIE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables (b) EZRHEAMERFBERE(HE)
(continued)
The movements in the allowance for doubtful FRREBEOEFHOT :
debts during the year are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
At 1 January n—A—H 288,538 289,342
Impairment losses recognised B MERHRERE (FIE7)
(Note 7) 262,643 7,815
Reclassified as assets ENOEARBIELENEE
held-for-sale (132,101) -
Uncollectible amounts written off 7~ A] Uk [B] < ZA fifl #5 (29,019) (8,619)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 390,061 288,538
At 31 December 2015, trade and other R-EBE—RE+=-A=+—H BS5REMmELK
receivables of RMB390,061,000 (2014: NIF AR #390,061,000(ZF—MME : AR
RMB288,538,000) were individually determined 288,538,000 7T ) & BIl 5 72 Rk {8 o 1] Bl 30 1 & e Uik
to be impaired. The individually impaired FHEHRHBRENSEREHEAEBATER
receivables related to customers and = ZEREIFBEAAKE o NEFEIW ERZE AL
debtors that were in financial difficulties and B E RIS o

management assessed that these receivables
are irrecoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (Bx 3 &SN » AANEREEFIR)

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Trade and bills receivables that are not
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

R j80 B TR A R (B
BN =1EA

Neither past due nor impaired

Less than 3 months past due
Over 3 months but within
6 months past due

Over 6 months past due B HAR R 7S (E A

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to bills receivable from the
issuing banks for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of customers that
have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015

19 EBSRHAEYRKIE ()

(c) WEBEZEZEUREARERRE

BE 4R {18 3k K R #AR AR BB 2 B 5 FRUGRIA I
PRI 2 REE DT T

BB E=EAE DR/ EA

2015 2014
- —FmF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETFTT
(restated)

(FeE75)

12,941 53,079
10,805 58,773
6,681 26,263

652 75,384

18,138 160,420
31,079 213,499

BR 4 360 50 7 B R 1B 2 R W SRR BRI ST B E AR S
ZABETRBRERE

BB HERBE BWHIR RS 2 BAKEER
RIFBERCSCBYRFPAR RFBELER £
REEERAYEEABYH MR EERDEERAIE
gm - WERERGEHANZSERIELRER
e
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

20 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 20 DEERBEHECZEERERE

HELD-FOR-SALE

RBEHARS EEFEHECEEREEZE
BT :

(@) The classes of assets and liabilities (a)
classified as held-for-sale at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

2015 2014
—EB-HF —=-E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBT T
(restated)
(&E5))
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment 1% - [E N & 120,572 134,747
Lease prepayments A EE 103,919 52,797
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E bR IE 381,988 405
Other current assets HEMnehEE 6,619 2,439
613,098 190,388
Less: Inter-company receivables g : R4RE B TSHHRK AP ¥ 8579
eliminated in the RN aEE R GRIE
consolidated financial
statements (372,178) -
240,920 190,388
Liabilities =N
Trade and other payables H 5 R H A FERFIR
(see Note 23(i)) (RHI3E23()) 520,679 3,336
Bank and other loans IRITREMERR 33,400 22,799
Other current liabilities Hitmea & 291 -
554,370 26,135
Less: Inter-company payables 8 : BR4RA B 75k 1 S5 AY
eliminated in the RNAEIEEFRIE
consolidated financial
statements (387,092) (8,336)
167,278 22,799

R-ZZE—RAF+t_A=1+—8H ARANELED
BARIELEZEERBE  RARREREMY
ERN T REFERTK °

At 31 December 2015, the disposals of the
assets and liabilities classified as held-for-
sale are still in progress, and the directors
of the Company expect the disposals to be
concluded by the end of 2016.

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BRSHE A - MARKETIR)

20 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS 20 SEARBELHEZEERERG(A)
HELD-FOR-SALE (CONTINUED)
(b) The movements of assets and liabilities (b) PEARFEHECZEENREBRFEANESIIN
classified as held-for-sale during the year T:

are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-IF —=-E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
(restated)
(geE=5)
Assets EE
As at 1 January n—A—H 190,388 80,591
Transfer into held-for-sale during G A 2= EH & (BEE (i)

the year (Note (iii) 542,699 151,426
Net decrease while in HIEHE R FEE

held-for-sale (7,948) (129)
Decrease through disposal of BB EEER D (BEE()

assets (Note (i) (70,064) (41,500)
Decrease through disposal of BT & — R B 2 alE 4 (B sk i)

a subsidiary (Note (ii)) (41,977) -
As at 31 December W+=—RA=+—H 613,098 190,388
Liabilities afE
As at 1 January Rn—A—H 26,135 -
Transfer into held-for-sale REREEFHFIENE (MR i)

during the year (Note (iii) 554,370 26,135
Net decrease while in e SR FEE

held-for-sale (749) -
Decrease through disposal of BELE —EHTE A RRD (HEE (i)

a subsidiary (Note (ii)) (25,386) -
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 554,370 26,135

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015



20 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS
HELD-FOR-SALE (CONTINUED)

21

(b)

The movements of assets and liabilities
classified as held-for-sale during the year
are as follows: (continued)

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015,
property, plant and equipment and lease
prepayments classified as held-for-sale with an
aggregate carrying value of RMB70,064,000
were disposed of, resulting in a gain of
RMB11,963,000 (see Note 6).

(ii) In November 2015, the Group disposed of
a subsidiary to a third party. The assets and
liabilities of this subsidiary were classified as held-
for-sale as at 1 January 2015. The consideration
for the disposal amounted to RMB56,000,000
fully satisfied in cash. The carrying value of
the net assets disposed of amounted to
RMB16,591,000. Accordingly, the Group
recognised a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of
RMB39,409,000 in 2015.

(i) In 2015, the Group has committed to and
commenced a sale plan of Kaifeng Changfeng
and its subsidiary (the “Kaifeng Changfeng
Group”). On 2 February 2016, the Company,
through a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a
conditional agreement with a third party in respect
of the disposal of the entire equity interests in
Kaifeng Changfeng and the assignment of certain
of the Group’s receivables due from the Kaifeng
Changfeng Group at a cash consideration of
RMB4,000. All of the assets and liabilities of the
Kaifeng Changfeng Group have been classified
as assets and liabilities classified as held-for-sale,
respectively, at the end of the reporting period.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Pledged bank deposits (Note (i)

Note (i): These bank deposits were pledged as securities for the

issuance of bank acceptance bills or letters of credit
to the Group’s suppliers, or as securities for on-going
litigations where a subsidiary of the Group is being
sued for payments of previously purchased goods from
a supplier (see Note 23(j)).

Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

20

21

BT ER 2R Y 5

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

FEHEZEEREE (H)

(b) PEABFEHECZEEREEREANSEHM
T @ (4)

paz -

U

REZE-—F—AFF+-A=1+—HIFE EH
E R EEAEEE BN R 70,064,000 7T #9548 515
EHERIYZE - BEREERENHENE  E
LR B 11,963,000 (R EH1:E6) -

i) R-FB-RF+—f AEEE—EE=SHE

—IHE A F] - ZHTEB R A EERBER-F
—AF—A—HABEBFIELHE - HEREBAR
#66,000,000 TEEUBEL 1T - BHEFEE
BIERET(E BN B 16,691,000T ° A » ZNEEH

R F— A FptH & — RN B A Al s A R
#.39,409,000 7T °

(i)  R-F—AF  FEEBRR GG FHLIGEE

B

EHEMRITER (HEE)

HIEE)

BERA R RENE L A ([FEEEEE )7
HEFE - R-FB—NF-—H—H  FRaEH
2EMB R FABEE =T T - ABE
B E R 15 £ 19 £ B IE RIZ T 2 (B AR
4,000 T #2385 B e W 2115 2L B £ T /K
HE o B EEE T HAER R EERKE
BRI HE IS EH EEERAE ©

RITEN
2015 2014
=F-1F —TIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR  ARETE
53 3,350

ZEE R IRIRITIZ 50 B HEFFIE 5 K5 B R E 2 T R
RITF I [EZ B (= FHAE I EIR « B IEAREER LI AT
FRAE B dn 1 54 A2 BT B 2 Rl #E SRR i (R (2 KT
FF23()) °

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23

Cash at bank and on hand

The Group’s operations in the PRC (excluding Hong
Kong) conduct their businesses in RMB. RMB is
not a freely convertible currency and the remittance

(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

22 RERREEEER

RITRFHERE

of funds out of the PRC (excluding Hong Kong) is
subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the

PRC government.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (Note (i)
Bills payables

Payables for construction and
purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Payables for staff related costs
Payable for acquisitions of equity
interests in subsidiaries
of the Group
Payables for miscellaneous taxes
Interest payables
Others

Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost

Deposits received in connection
with disposals of assets
classified as held-for-sale
and subsidiaries

Advances received from customers

Provision for warranties

23 EIZRHMENRR

B SR E (M)
ENEE

EREBEYME  BER
AR {1 R

8 TR AN B 0R
U AN 52 [ B 8 B RCAE P A 0R

e ZRBTHIA
I ANEAIRSN
Hit

WEHKATTEN S RAE
HEDBARIEHEEENM
F 8 A BRI &

[REE Yk
RIEBM
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2015 2014
—E-EHF —T—PUeF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
195,632 6,858

AEERTBE(TRERE) NEKLEAARE
B ARERTAEALBRNEERESELTE
(TEREER) BT ERNEMNINERFIRE

2015 2014
—E-HF —Z=—EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
(restated)

(F&E3)

37,936 58,299

- 17,850

37,936 76,149
7,797 12,755
11,217 15,297
5,462 12,550
4,410 7,342
4,408 1,435
26,355 20,372
97,585 145,900
51,000 92,000
1,411 7,500

928 1,063
150,924 246,463




23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as revenue within one year
or are repayable on demand.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade and bills payables included in trade
and other payables, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Within 3 months =EAR
3to 6 months =zN@A
Over 6 months HBidsNE A

Note (i): Certain subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the
Axle and train business are being sued by suppliers
for payments on the Group’s previous purchases of
goods. The directors of the Company consider the
amounts claimed by these suppliers have already been
recognised by the respective subsidiaries under trade
and other payables (also under liabilities classified
as held-for-sale if related to the Kaifeng Changfeng
Group), and accordingly, no additional provision is
provided in respect of these claims. Certain assets are
pledged as securities for these on-going litigations.

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS 3R R B 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BB A AN - UARKESIR
23 ESRHMEMNREE)

FBESRE ﬁﬂfﬁ NIRTAHIN — F AR R
RBAKIRERER

RBERR > StAE S MEMENFIRZE RN
RARENEEERERBRHREONET

2015 2014
—E-RF —Z Y4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT
(restated)

(#&=:51)

7,475 38,660
6,519 29,963
23,942 7,526
37,936 76,149

Biet() : REEE T I FENE RS ERFBAINE R r]E 7 EE
7”‘551/5%‘, a9 1T 5K R E B HEAL SR 7L © A4 ﬂé’f%
B R FEA L EEREEHE R AR
SRR T (RS EEER - 7/7&‘“%
ROBRIFIELHERBET)ET @ AUt - BERZE
KIEFIEFEIN BN - BT EECHBIFIERZE %f’;ﬁ
AHIIEIR ©

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 24 SHROREMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other (a) AEENEHRITEEMCERSFMT :
loans are analysed as follows:
2015 2014
“E-EF —ZT—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT
(restated)
(FeE5)
Bank loans: RITE :
- Secured by land use rights — A B/ L A R
and property, plant and B2 K 3% A HE 4
equipment of the Group 57,400 209,530
— Secured by trade receivables —HAAEENE RN GBI
of the Group 12,000 30,000
- Unguaranteed and unsecured —EERREIEA - 26,550
69,400 266,080
Other loans from third parties: REE=HEMER :
— Guaranteed by subsidiaries —HASEBARIER
of the Group 30,000 -
— Unguaranteed and unsecured —EER R EER 44,504 20,000
74,504 20,000
143,004 286,080
Add: Current portion of long-term /il = H At R HIE K&
other loan (Note 24(0)) N (M 24(0)) 13,000 13,000
Non-current portion of BREKERRHARIT
long-term bank loan repayable EXRERE S
on demand (Note 24(b)) (BizE24(0)) 15,000 15,000
171,904 314,080
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24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 24 HITREMER(H)

(b) The Group’s long-term bank loan is (b)
analysed as follows:

FEBNRPBITERDIFAT -

2015 2014
—EB-AfF —ZE—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(restated)
(FeE5))
Bank loan guaranteed by a FR R &R [ /B 2 Al AR Y
subsidiary of the Group RITERK 15,000 15,000
Other loan from a third party: REF=ZFTHNEMER :
— Guaranteed by a subsidiary — RSB B A RIER
of the Group - 13,000
— Guaranteed by a third party —HE=FER 13,000 -
13,000 13,000
28,000 28,000
Less: Current portion of B B RAERAREIE D
long-term other loan (M &E 24(a))
(Note 24(a)) (13,000) (13,000)
Non-current portion of EIREREERPIRITERD
long-term bank loan EmENEL 7 (5L 24(a))
repayable on demand
(Note 24(a)) (15,000) (15,000)

The Group’s long-term bank loan with AEEBRHABRTERLISBERARE

principal amount of RMB15,000,000 is subject
to the fulfilment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. At 31 December 2015, the Group
has breached certain covenants as stipulated
in the long-term bank loan agreement, and
accordingly, this loan became repayable on
demand and has been classified as short-term
bank loan.

15,000,000 X Hi & @B ER LR B R E
BEENFRE o RZE—RE+_RA=+—
B AEEEREHRTERBEEEZET
2 Fitt ZEREKRBBAREREERD
DIEEAEERTER -

SESERBERAT —T- AEEEHS @
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24 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 24 HITREMER(H)

25

(c) The following assets and their respective
carrying values as at the end of the
reporting period are pledged to secure the
Group’s short-term bank loans

() TIEERERREBRZIREED EFER
AEMEHRITERZER

2015 2014

—E-IF —=E

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBT T

(restated)

(geE=5)

Property, plant and equipment  #1% « [BE & fE 26,233 108,731

Lease prepayments AR ERR 11,761 84,640

Trade receivables =) e e 14,422 37,500
Assets classified as NERFEHEEE

held-for-sale - 134,183

52,416 365,054

(d) As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s banking
facilities amounted to RMB20,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB349,540,000) were
utilised to the extent of RMB12,000,000 (31
December 2014: RMB259,530,000).

SECURED NOTES

On 3 June 2015, the Company issued secured
notes (the “Notes”) with an aggregate face value
of USD20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB122,352,000) to Chance Talent Management
Limited (“Chance Talent”), a third party. The Notes
bear interest at 13% per annum, payable semi-
annually, and will mature on 3 June 2017. The
Notes and the convertible bonds issued on 3 June
2015 (See Note 26) are secured by 505,581,818
ordinary shares in the Company owned by Century
Investment, an equity shareholder of the Company.
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(d R-ZE—RF+-A=+—H  KEBEERT
Rz EE AR 20,000,000 7T (ZZE— M4
+=—A=+—H : AR®349,540,0007T)E
A AR 12,000,000 (ZZE—MFE+—H
=+—8 : AR#¥259,530,0007T) °

BIEHZEE
RZE—RAFE A= KRR HR—KE=

7 Chance Talent Management Limited ([ Chance
Talent]) % 17 [ {& 42 88 /5 20,000,000 3% 7T (49 F R
AR#122,352,0007) FEARE ([ RE]) - Rig
BEFEAZ%FE  BFFRE—X  UHRZE
—+EXNA=ZHAH R_E—AFNA=HET
ZEERAERES (RHE26) MAR R ERRER
Century Investment# A < 505,581,818[x AN 7l &8
AEAE AR o
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26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS 26 mAmRES

The Group’s convertible bonds are analysed as
follows:

At 1 January 2015 RZEZ—AF—H—AH
Convertible bonds issued B E{TRI#RES

Accrued finance charges  AFEEETHISE A (KFi5E8(a))

for the year (Note 8(a))

Interest paid SARENESE

Exchange adjustments bEE 5 SR

Fair value changes on TETABHNF
the derivative BEEE) (Fiz8()
components (Note 8(a))

At 31 December 2015 —HF+-H=+—H

On 8 June 2015, the Company has issued two
secured convertible bonds with face value of
USD6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB36,706,000) (“CB1”) and USD4,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB24,470,000)
(“CB2”) to Chance Talent. Both convertible bonds
bear interest at 13% per annum and will mature on 3
June 2018. CB1, CB2 and the Notes (see Note 25)
are secured by 505,581,818 ordinary shares in the
Company owned by Century Investment.

Upon issuance of these convertible bonds, Chance
Talent can convert CB1 into the Company’s ordinary
shares at HK$1.06 per share (i.e. the conversion
option) and CB2 into the Company’s ordinary shares
at HK$1.50 per share (i.e. the conversion option)
at any time from 3 June 2016 till 3 June 2018.
The conversion options are classified as derivative
financial instruments and have been included in the
balance of the convertible bonds in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

REBAHRBRESF O T

Liability Derivative
components components Total
&N PTET RIS #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT AR®TFT AR®TR

54,328 4,950 59,278

5,810 - 5,810
(4,159) - (4,159)
3,449 4,841 8,290
- 11,190 11,190
59,428 20,981 80,409

R=ZZF—RAF/,NA=H ' KAFE R Chance Talent
TN EE D Bl A6,000,000% T (XFERARE
36,706,000 7)) B AHRMES ([ AJRARES—1)
% 4,000,000 ZE 7T (49E R AR 24,470,000 70) 1K
AR E S ([T HRRREH =) - ZE/M1D ARk
BHIRFREAZ%FTELTHER_E—NFRA=
BEH - AT Es—  IRREF-REER (R
£ 25) LA Century Investment # & #) 505,581,818 ik 4%
RNalE BRI o

REETTRZ —r—Hﬁ‘Hﬂi%‘w& Chance Talentaf B =&
VA AN 2 \FANA=ZBEMEREIZL
%A oe/anﬂff?ﬁﬁﬁ%%—@;m%mAE%@&
(BNHRNEHE ) K3 TR 508 T Al AR E A5 — i A
ARaLmik (BIIRRRE) - MRER S ER/ITES
BT B E 5T ALRE SRR AR ES 2 &8k o

| %

2
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27 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 27 RERZFEELUROAEBNKS
TRANSACTIONS
On 10 February 2012, the directors of the Company N-ZE——"F-_H+H AR BEZHEMAN—ERKMND

adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award #%
Scheme”) as a mean of rewarding and retaining =
selected employees of the Group. A trust has been 5F o
set up for the purpose of administering the Share

Award Scheme.

=
BhEt & (TR R & D ER BB R BB AKE
B2z - ARAC s E RN REF8IKLE

On 25 March 2015, 2,832,000 ordinary shares held RZZE—RAF=A=+HA  BERGKDEEEF
under the Share Award Scheme were awarded to F22,832,0000x L@ E HE) TAEEEE (TAE
an employee of the Group (also a then director of BFHAARIES) @ KA EAO. 79;‘%7‘5(,%’9%)‘5/\\\
the Company) with a fair value per share of HK$0.79 & AR 0.637T) ° R AF(E IR ERND
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.63 per share). BRZZE—AF=A=+ThHBZKHE ﬁ’ﬁ?gm aZ
The fair value of the shares was determined by ERFRON_ZT—RAF=A_++tHEEB -

reference to the closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares on 25 March 2015. These awarded
shares were vested on 27 March 2015.

Details of the shares held under the Share Award R R 2 A 2 IRD BT
Scheme are set out below:

2015 2014
—E-TF —E-IF
Average No. of Average No. of
purchase shares purchase shares
price held Value price held Value
THRERE FMEROEAE RE THEEE MEROEA Bl
HK$ ’000 RMB’000 HKS$ '000 RMB'000
B Th ARBTx B Tk ARETT
At 1 January ®—A—A 0.71 2,832 1,627 0.7 2,832 1,627
Shares granted and RERBELR
vested during ERERRN
the year (2,832 (1,627) - -
At 31 December “t=RA=1+—H - - - 0.71 2832 1,627

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R M 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

28 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 28 EEBBEEEREE
(@ The components of deferred tax assets and @ RESUBRARERZELERIBEEERAR
liabilities recognised in the consolidated o ERNFEARN 2 BEEINT

statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =R

Fair value

adjustments

on property,

plant and

equipment,

lease

prepayments

and intangible

assets and

subsequent

Unrealised depreciation

profit for Unused and
inventories tax loss amortisation Total

M - HWE &

R AN

MERIER

BREE

ZAYE

REL REA FAEURERE
FE&MN  BEEE TEREHE st
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2014 R_E—NF—H—H 585 — (780) (195)
Credited to the T AGRE B REAM

consolidated statement ZHERER

of profit or loss and (Mt5£9(a))

other comprehensive

income (Note 9(a)) 305 - 35 340
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF+=fA=+—H 890 = (745) 145
Additions through BRWE—FBARRE

acquisition of a (KF=E30)

subsidiary (Note 30) = 10,099 (6,479) 4,620
(Charged)/credited to (BB GTAGAEBRK

the consolidated Hin2mlmRk

statement of profit (B3E9())

or loss and other

comprehensive

income (Note 9(a)) (890) 16,171 983 16,264
At 31 December 2015 R_E—HF+-_A=+—H — 26,270 (5,241) 21,029

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS @



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 53R 3R M5
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28 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position:

Deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated statement
of financial position

28 EEHEEERAE (H)

RiFE MR RAERZ
BT AEE

Deferred tax liabilities recognised HA4R & B 75k L R MR

in the consolidated statement
of financial position

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(r), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused
tax losses and temporary differences of
RMB1,002,017,000 at 31 December 2015 (31
December 2014: RMB718,568,000 (restated),
as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses and temporary
differences can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The
unused tax losses at 31 December 2015 will
expire on or before 31 December 2020.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015

EERIRAE

b *HFEEMBHRARAERNECHEEERAR
HYSER -
2015 2014
—E-AF —E—OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
26,270 145
(5,241) =
21,029 145

€ AERHELHBEEE

BIEM 2N IR ST EER - AREEBRRS
ANAERA - BETAN LA A RERBEF
DA SH R B A 2 BB B 18 N BT R 2 58 - U
EERRN-_E-AE+-A=+—RWERKE
BiiEEE TR =% AR 1,002,017,000
T(ZE—NE+-_A=+—"H8: AR
718,568,000 7T (£ &%) ) RIELEFIBEE ©
R-EBE—FE+_A=+—8 ' XHAHE
BEEN T -_TF+_-_A=+—H=ZR1/E
M ©
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 29 EX - #ERERE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) HEZIFOHEFH
The reconciliation between the opening and REBMGEERS T DRIV M HERE G 2 4
closing balances of each component of the RERGEREEFEK - AQRFHEFRE
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the BIBE D HEZS 7 BB EEEN TR -
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Shares held
Share Share under share Capital  Accumulated
capital premium  award scheme reserve losses Total
RERHRE
k& ROEE  sHEEENRR BAGHE Zithg &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(Note 29(c)fi)) ~ (Note29(d)(i)  (Note 29(d)(i))  (Note 20(d)iil)
(WE2(0) (K20 (K20 (W2
Balanceat1January 2014~ W=Z-ME-f-AMEH 53,560 599,296 (1,627) 226,98 (50497) 827,714
Changes in equity for 2014 R-F-BENERSE:
Loss and total comprehensie ~ FRBIERZERALEE
income for the year (restated)  (&5) - - - - (334,674) (334,674)
Balanceat31 December ~ R=E-BETZA=1-A
2014 and 1 January R=E-15-A-A
2015 (restated) WiEeh (£=3)) 53,560 509,206 (1627) 206,982 (585,171) 23,040
Changes in equity for 2015 R=E-EENERET .
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRBERZE
income for the year N - - - - (265,046) (265,046
Issuance of shares to new equity [V AIFTEVER R E T
sharefolders of the Company {7 (FF&E 29(c) (i)
(Note 29(c)(i) 37,498 119,466 - - - 156,064
Issuance of shares on SR
acquistion of a subsiciary AREARR
(Notes 29(c)i) and 30) (HzE290) ()R 30) 7499 68,376 - - - 75,875
Shares granted under the QR HE
share award scheme fikp (Msk2r)
MNote 27) - - - 1M - 1,1
Shares vested under the share  IRIZIR(A KB 2IHE
award scheme (Note 27) fikm (WsE27) - - 1627 (1,1 145 -
Baance at 31 December 2015 R=F—R%+-f
=T—RiEH 98,557 787,138 - 206982 (850,072) 262,605
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year
The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December
2015 (2014: RMBNIil).

(ii) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial
year, approved during the year
The directors of the Company did not
recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(2013: RMBNIl).

(c) Share capital

(i) Issued share capital

Authorised: HIE
Ordinary shares of SREEC0I E T2 LMK

USDO0.01 each

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015

29 EX - AERKRE ()

(b)

(c)

=)
(i)

(i)

&
(i)

—E-1fF
No. of
shares

RH®E
’000

Tk

EAARBEERRZAFERE

ARABEEIEZZRNBE_FT—0F
ToA=t-BUEFEZREEE(ZF
—EE : ARKZT) -

RAFEREZBNEARERRR L
—HERFERS

ARABEETEZRNBE T —MF
TZA=t—HUEFEZRE(ZE—=
F:AREBERT) -

EBITRA

2014
eSS
No. of
shares
BingE
'000
Fhx

2015

USD'000
TEL

UsD’000
e

5,000,000

50,000 5,000,000 50,000
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 BA - RERKRE(HE)

(CONTINUED)
(c) Share capital (continued) (c) BA(#|)
(i) Issued share capital (continued) (i) BRITRAEGE)
2015 2014
—B-1% —T-mE
No. of No. of
shares shares
RIEE RIDEE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
TR AR%®TR T ARETET
Ordinary shares of ERTREHEEREE
USD0.01 each, 0.01 ETZEER :
issued and fully paid:
At 1 January ®—HA—H 800,000 53,560 800,000 53,560
Shares issued to new B TARARRNERERR
equity shareholders 2Bt (BEEE 29(c)(i))
of the Company
(Note 29(c)(i) 610,606 37,498 - -
Shares issued on KB —FRINB AR
acquisition of ik
a subsidiary (P 29(c) i) . 30)
(Notes 29(c)(ii) and 30) 122,121 7,499 - -
At 31 December W+ZA=+—H 1,532,727 98,557 800,000 53,560
(i) On 25 March 2015, the Company issued (i) RZZE—AF=A=—+HB ' ARF&K

610,606,000 new ordinary shares at
the subscription price of HK$0.33 per
share to the equity shareholders of
Century East (the “Subscription”). The
Company also issued 122,121,000 new
ordinary shares (“Consideration Shares”)
to Century East as consideration for
the Company’s acquisition of Century
East’'s 51% equity interests in Century
Network. USD6,106,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB37,498,000) of
the proceeds from the Subscription
and USD1,221,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB7,499,000) of
the deemed proceeds from the
Consideration Shares (determined based
on the closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange
on 25 March 2015 at HK$0.79 per
share) were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The total of the remaining
proceeds from the Subscription and the
remaining deemed proceeds from the
Consideration Shares, net of transaction
costs, of USD30,588,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB187,842,000)
were credited to the Company’s share
premium account.

FARFRIE(E 0.83 8 CM Century Easti#
%5 % B8 2477 610,606,000 & #T @Ak ([ 32
B=1]) - AR INE M Century East
2£17122,121,000 A% #1 & 38 3% ([ R B I
1) - fERZAR A TIUEE Century Eastid
Century Network 51% &t 2 (B - 2
& = I8 AT 15 FIA AR 6,106,000 3 7T (4%
WA R 37,498,000 ) MR ER B R
9 BT 18 X I8 R 1,221,000 7T (49 & R
AR ¥ 7,499,0007T ) (R IFEAR R 7] E
BA—E—RE=A-_t+HABEKIR
ZWHEBER07IBITEE) ;T ALRA
RAIMEAN o REESIHEB TN ATB B KR
REBRGH TAEZEAE (RS
FX 7 ) 30,588,000 T (49 E M A R &
187,842,000 7T ) Tyt AR A &l I 19 )6 B
EE °
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v

Share premium
The application of the share premium
account is governed by Section 34 of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Shares held under share award
scheme

The amount represents the consideration
paid for shares held under the Share
Award Scheme (Note 27).

Capital reserve

The balance of capital reserve represents
changes in equity arising from the group
reorganisation took place in 2008 and
20089.

Surplus reserves

In accordance with the articles of
association of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong), these subsidiaries were
required to set up certain statutory
reserves and discretionary surplus
reserves, which were non-distributable.
The transfers of these reserves are
at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The surplus
reserves are Uutilised for predetermined
means upon approval by the relevant
authority.

Other reserve

The balance of other reserve comprises
the difference between the consideration
paid and the carrying values of the non-
controlling interests acquired by the
Group in prior years.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015

(BRBEHEIN - UARES|R)

29 EX - AERKRE ()

(d RBEZMHEEREN

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

B EE
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RER G ZBABFERD

%R IR B B BB ET 814 B B D X
FFEHRE (BRE27) -

e
BEARBENEREAR_TENEFR -
FENFRHRENOREBEMEENRRE

BEREE
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Distributability of reserves

The Company’s reserves available for
distribution represent the share premium
account and retained profits. Under the
Company Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions
or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its memorandum or articles of
association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. At 31
December 2015, the aggregate amount of
reserves (including the Company’s retained
profits, if any, and share premium) available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, subject to the above restrictions, is
RMB787,138,000 (2014: RMB599,296,000).
The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMBNIl).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher equity shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions.
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290 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 EA - HERRE (H)

(CONTINUED)

() Capital management (continued) (H EBEREE(E)
The Group monitors its capital structure on the AREFIRKHZRFABHE N REEEERH
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. BARGERE - UL B HY - <<<Dﬂ LEBERTE AR
For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined BE(BRETREMER  BEBEEE - 7]
as total debt (which includes bank and other Tﬁﬂ%f%‘%&%\%&ﬁ@%ﬁnlﬁ)jJD%EJEé.;I‘T
loans, secured notes, convertible bonds, and IR B (F) - BRE KA EEER MK
trade and other payables) plus unaccrued TW? o MR E AR IEE R 2 FTBHEKE D
proposed dividends, if any, less cash and cash BIEMERHE S RIS (20F ) °

equivalents and pledged deposits. Adjusted
capital comprises all components of equity,
less unaccrued proposed dividends, if any.

During 2015, the Group continued to make RIZT—AF  ASEEERSLCARTFAR
efforts to improve the adjusted net debt-to- £J§$tt7 BT RSB E AEE
capital ratio. In order to maintain or adjust the AIBITHRG  EEFEBRESLEEEN
ratio, the Group may issue new shares, raise BIRERS ©
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.
The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital AREEBR -_ZE—RAFERER-_FT—NF+_H
ratio at 31 December 2015 and 2014 was as == EZZ“‘ B a E Té$tb$§DT 3
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBT R ARETIT
(restated)
(&ESl)
Current liabilities: MENELE -
Trade and other payables 25 REAMENFRIEA 23 150,924 246,463
Bank and other loans RITREMETK 24(a) 171,904 314,080
322,828 560,543
Non-current liabilties: FERBALRE
Secured notes BHEBRE 25 128,271 =
Convertible bonds R ES 26 80,409 =
Total debt HBEw 531,508 560,543
Less: cash and cash equivalents B R kREEEIRE 22 (195,632) (6,858)
Less: pledged deposits B IR 21 (53) (3,350)
Adjusted net debt RARBEFE 335,823 550,335
Total equity R 72,091 433,228
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio EFHEFEBEUEALLR 466% 127%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries AR B S EL T B A A1¥508 B 4 e NI EP R B AN
are subject to externally imposed capital FRIE °

requirements.
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 26 September 2014, the Company entered into
a share purchase agreement with Century East,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to acquire
Century East’s 51% equity interests in Century
Network through the issuance of 122,121,000
ordinary shares in the Company as consideration
(see Note 29(c)(ii).

Upon completion of the above acquisition on 25
March 2015, the Group recorded a goodwill of
RMB61,013,000, calculated as below:

Fair value of consideration (Note (i)
Less: fair value of identifiable net

Notes to the Financial Statements
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REZ2FE (K@)
B BRI EE L

assets acquired (Note (ii)) B (PR EE (ii))
Goodwill (Note 16) P2 (ffEE 16)
Notes:
(i) Fair value of consideration

The fair value of the consideration was HK$96,476,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB76,392,000), which
was calculated based on 122,121,000 ordinary shares
in the Company issued for the acquisition and at the
closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the
Stock Exchange of HK$0.79 per share (equivalent to
approximately RMBO0.63 per share) on 25 March 2015.

(ii) Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired

Property, plant and YF - BEREE Hi136)
equipment (Note 13(a))

Intangible assets (Note 15)  ZHEE (K15t 15)

Deferred tax assets (Note 28(a)iEL #E & E (W1 28(a)

Trade and other receivables ~ BZRA ftfEWE

Inventories -3y

Cash and cash equivalents ~ Bz REEZEEH
Trade and other payables B REMENE
Income tax payable JEITATiZH

Deferred tax liabilities
(Note 28(a))

EEFHEEE (H125()

Total identifiable net assets ~ AI#FFEEHE

Less: non-controling interests i - 2R #E 7

Fair value of identifiable net B T4 5 FEE A FE

assets acquired

B TSR 2R Y T

(FRZAERBS - AARESITR)

E

RZZE—WFNA=—+/H ' A5 Century East
I —MmERGZE Bt ARBREBERBET
122,121,000 R AN &) 3 AR 1E A W Century East
R Century Network 51% B 2 R (8 (R ik 29(c)
(i) °

R-BE—RFE=A-t+HABRAHKESEE
REBFEREEHEARMEG61,013,0007T @ 5TELHTF ¢

RMB’000
ARBTT

76,392

(15,379)

61,013

Bt

() RIBEZ A FE
RIEZ X FE #E96476,0008 T (#ERA K K
76,392,0007T ) * T3 B R AL Al gL g FEE T F17.2
122,121,000 A 2 Al @R R R = FE—AF=HA=17H
B ] EE R BT 2 K TT1E AR 0. 7987 (#9518
RN FEH0.637T ) i1 ERH -

(i) — EHRERHFFEEZ N FE

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustments acquisition
Yokt AT AFE YEER
FEE HE E#REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
NEEFT ANEETFT AEEFT
10,332 - 10,332
18,406 3,511 21,917
10,099 - 10,099
59,118 - 59,118

705 - 705

3,275 - 3,275
(64,560) - (64,560)
(823) - (823
(4,601) (878) (5,479
31,951 2,633 34,584
19,205

15,379

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS @
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30 BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

31

Notes: (continued)
(ii) Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired (continued)

Pre-acquisition carrying amounts of the acquirees’
assets and liabilities were determined based on
applicable HKFRSs immediately before the acquisition.
The values of assets and liabilities recognised on
acquisition are their estimated fair values. In determining
the fair values of intangible assets, the directors
of the Company have referenced the fair value
adjustments to valuation report issued by Cushman &
Wakefield Valuation Advisory Services (HK) Limited, an
independent professional valuer.

From the date of the above acquisition to 31 December
2015, the above acquisition contributed revenue of
RMB43,172,000 and net loss of RMB82,410,000 to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015. Had the
above acquisition been completed on 1 January 2015,
the directors of the Company estimated the consolidated
revenue and consolidated net loss for the year ended 31
December 2015 would have been RMB170,739,000 and
RMB633,010,000, respectively.

(iii) Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

The directors of the Company consider the Axle and
train business in the PRC are in severe competition
during recent years and, by completing the
acquisition, the Company will be able to diversify
the Group’s existing business to strive for growth
potential and improve the financial position of the
Group.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited Annual Report 2015
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BXREREERSBMIENATE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (@) EERER

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers and debtors requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s and debtor’s past history
of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer and debtor as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer and debtor operates.
For trade receivables arising from the Group’s
E-commerce business, cash before delivery
is generally required for all customers. Trade
receivables arising from the Group’s Axle and
train business are generally due within three to
four months from the date of billings. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers and debtors.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer or debtor rather than the industry
in which the customers and debtors operate
and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
At 31 December 2015, 56.0% (2014: 16.0%
(restated)) and 79.7% (2014: 54.6% (restated))
of the total trade and bills receivables was due
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors, respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in Note
19.

AEEWEERBREZREE S MEMBAR
B BEEERAEFERR Y ERBEEEZT
8RR -

B S MEMBYGIAN S - AREHER(E
BB EBNMERPREBALETREE
Al - RFHEETREP REBABEH
AR RS R IRFERE D - AEERE
FREHANERER LTS REBAKLEH
FEHMEERE - IAKENETHBERTA
EENBESRIRIANS @ AKE—RELMHM
BEPRRMNAMXNRE - AEEER/KIIE
EEMELNE ZREFIRAR 8 RE AR
—ZNEARZS - —RME - ARETER
P KA ARG o

AEENEERREESSBRERESANE
BB RETRE  MIEZHF REEALELRE
TERBERFE WASENEREZEES
B £ BE A S B E KERE R R
EXx - -R_Z—AHAF+_HA=+—H8 ' E5
JE U IE K JIE UK 22 1 4258 19 56.0% (= Z — Y
F 1 16.0% (KEF)) ®79.7% (ZF — U4 :
54.6% (#£EH)) DRl BEKAEERZAE HE
HARAKNE SEEAHFKIE °

AR B IR AT (TS A B AT AR
1R -

AR E S E 5 B MR 5 B
R 0 s 2 BB R BUAA B2 19 -
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(BREABI - AARKEFIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

@ Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited

Liquidity risk

The treasury function is centrally managed
by the Group, which includes the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands. The
Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest
dates the Group can be required to pay.

Trade and other TR SHR AR
payables measured STENES R
at amortised cost H e F0A

Bank and other loans RITREMER

Secured notes BEHEHEE

Convertible bonds AR ES
— liability components —AaEHn

Annual Report 2015
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PHEREERESHM T AENDFE(E)

(b)

RBESER

BB AEETRER - BFEHES AR
RHRE  UREEERAREEARREH
Ko AEENBREZETHEERDESHTR
REFZHHBITER - WERERZHIRE
s BX2MEREARRETONRER
B KmEMNEMEERERSESFR

TRINFAEERBERRIREORERRAS
mE(BRERAQN XK (WEEE)NRE
HASR B3R B K RSt By M B AN 70) st B A IEDT
ETRAENRISREOMR - UARAKEARE
BAEFANREES -

2015
—Z-1F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ERRTRBRERE

More than More than Carrying
Within 1 1 year but 2 years but amount
year oron less than less than at 31
demand 2 years 5 years Total December
—F mE RW+=A
—FR kB kB =+—H
FRER WMEUAT IEEUT &5 MEREMA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTR ARETR AR¥ETR AR¥TR
97,585 - - 97,585 97,585
177,156 - - 177,156 171,904
16,883 138,314 - 155,197 128,271
8,442 8,442 69,157 86,041 59,428
300,066 146,756 69,157 515,979 457,188
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BXREREERSBMIENATE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REESER ()

2014 (restated)
—E PO (KLES)
Contractual
undiscounted
cash outflow

BRIARITER
LR
within 1 Carrying
year or on amount at 31
demand December
R+=A
—FR =+—H
FIREK HIERTE{E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Trade and other payables RS NG T2
measured at amortised cost B 5 REMEFRIE 145,900 145,900
Bank and other loans RIT R EAME K 327,875 314,080
473,775 459,980
() Interest rate risk (c) FI=ZEER
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily AEBNFERBEZIREFTEER o Z3F
from interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings EZREEMNEERIAEREEAZRERE
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates FEE S M AT EREER

expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BREREEREMIANATE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) F=@Ek(E)
() Interest rate profile (i) FIRER
The following table details the interest TR AN E B A R A B R A9 B ORI &
rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at BES o
the end of the reporting period.
2015 2014 (restated)
ZE-1E ZE-F(EE5)
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRAZ ERFI=
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
AR¥EFT ARBTTL
Fixed rate borrowings: ~ EERIZMER :
Bank and other loans RITREMER 0%~13.0% 74,504 508%-~10.98% 86,080
Secured notes BEAZE 15.33% 128,271 = =
Convertiole bonds - liabiity ~ Pl E% — B EHH
components 18.8% 59,428 = =
262,203 86,080
Variable rate borrowings: FBFIRER :
Bank and other loans FITREMER 4.9%~7.0% 97,400  6.0%-8.4% 228,000
Total borrowings Eaa 359,603 314,080
Fixed rate borrowings BEFE{EH1E
as a percentage of ERECEEER
total borrowings 73% 27%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BREREEREMIANATE(E)

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued) (c) FI=@Ek (&)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BRBREDN

At 31 December 2015, it is estimated R-_ZE—RF+-_A=+—H £MA
that a general increase/decrease of HMEEHR[AEZBRT - B
100 basis points in interest rates, with WFR2EE EF TR 100 RS - A%
all other variables held constant, would EZBRBEEEREEEGEN R
have increased/decreased the Group’s DEANREEI74,000T(ZZF—WEF : A
loss after tax and accumulated losses R# 2,280,000 7T (&£&7%1)) »
by approximately RMB974,000 (2014:
RMB2,280,000 (restated)).
The sensitivity analysis above indicates A FEURES MR RES D RNRE
the instantaneous change in the Group’s HREBE  WEERREXZHTEHNTE
loss after tax and accumulated losses AEEMFSAEBR RS HREEIR
assuming that the change in interest ERNERBRNZEHETESHTE -
rates had occurred at the end of the RAAEERTEEER R EERN
reporting period and had been applied to REE - AefEAEERNKRRERERER
re-measure those non-derivative financial Z2EEENZESUFREFHHNF S H
instruments held by the Group which YHEEZE o DITIRE - T —NEFR
expose the Group to cash flow interest Rz RREAERETT
rate risk at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s loss
after tax and accumulated losses is
estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expenses of such a change in
interest rates. The analysis is performed
on the same basis as 2014.

(d) Currency risk (d) E¥EK

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases and borrowings
which give rise to receivables, payables, loans
and cash balances that are denominated in a
foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily USD and HK$. The
Group manages this risk as follows:

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of receivables, payables and
borrowings denominated in foreign
currencies, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short-term imbalances.

AEERHTZRER REEASNE (B
SEBEBNEEEUINEE) BEHRIK
A - BARIE  ERERBAEHRELEER
B o EHZERNEE T ERETMET - A
SERA T A EEZER -

() CERREERER
SLASNESHE R B UGRIR - BN FRIAER
ERME - AEEBBERGHPT T
AANFERRAEEETINENTA
FERAE RS HAR S M R Al SKF
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown
in RMB, translated using the spot rate at
the end of the reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents  BHE&RRESEEE
Trade and other receivables & 5 K E B U ZE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMEMNFA
Secured notes BERZER
Convertible bonds RRES

Gross exposure arising ERREERAR

from recognised EARERERE
assets and liabilities
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PHEREERESHM T AENDFE(E)

(d E¥EkE(E)
(i) MERHNEXES

TR AEERBEMRANGBE
B LIS 2 S PI M E RS

EXREMELENEEEAR

T ELT

53R - AR E e & 58 AR &S B R AN HAEE

EFEANRETIT -

2015 2014 (restated)

—E-%f T (EE5)
usD HK$ usb HK$
in BT Er oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TRT AR®TT ARBTR
181,432 5,248 162 1,444
21 - - -
(2,712 (2,099) - -
(128,271) - - -
(80,409) - - -
(29,939) 3,149 162 1,444
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after tax and accumulated losses that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other
risk variables remained constant.

Usb =

HK$ BT

Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation
of the instantaneous effects on each
of the Group entities’ loss after tax
and accumulated losses measured in
the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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B EER (8)

(iii)

Extsh/ REHER

B S 17
TERIIRBR AR S B ST
% AREARENKAELRENE
i B A B Y AR E R B AR R 2
SHEREA 2D -

2015 2014 (restated)

“E-TfF —T-MmEF(8E5)
Increase/ Decrease/
Increase/  (decrease) Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) in loss after (decrease) inloss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated
rates losses rates losses
BHRER Rk

ExLf,/ REER

(FR) &m/(84) (FR) md/(4m)

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T AEBTT

5% 1,907 5% 8
(5%) (1,907) (5%) (®)
5% (157) 5% 72
(5%) 157 (5%) (72)

BN ERSEASE S ERILIARM
DB ENRRRERRZEE
FEMEKEZERE  YH2IIRN R
SHRNEZTBEBARE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that
the change in foreign exchange rates
had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which
are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender or
the borrower. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2014.

(e) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs,
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement
date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

= Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs, i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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() AFEFEGER)
() HUATPEFENSHREENEE(E)

DFEER ()

s  F_AfAE: MBE_RBABE
(BIBR S — R E MR A LR 8 A
2R ENMERBEZTABRRHA
BR8N F(E - TABER AR
BREERETSBBEISNRE -

s F=AfMHE:NABEETABREHR
ABEFERTE -

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3

PEA=EZR
HAFETE
2015 2014
—E-HF —TIF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Recurring fair value KEMATETE
measurement
Financial liabilities TRIBE
— Derivative components ~ — A[# R EHIT4A T AZ D
of convertible bonds (MI=£26)
(Note 26) 20,981 -

During the year ended 31 December
2015 and 2014, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

REBEE-_Z—AFA_FT—NFE+_A
=+—HLEFE F—REF-_HZMHE
WEERS W ERE = REARE L -
AEEB 2 BER T ABRERMEENBRES
HRER AT EER 2 E 2 ER -
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

Derivative components of
convertible bonds

ARREFITE R D

The fair values of the conversion options
embedded in the convertible bonds are
determined using binomial lattice model
and the significant unobservable input
used in the fair value measurement
is expected volatility. The fair value
measurement is positively correlated
to the expected volatility. As at 31
December 2015, it is estimated that
with all other variables held constant,
an increase in the expected volatility by
5% would have increased the Group’s
net loss by RMB1,260,000, whereas a
decrease in the expected volatility by 5%
would have decreased the Group’s net
loss by RMB1,279,000.
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model volatility
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BXREREERSBMIENATE(E)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (continued)
The movements during the year
in the balance of Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

Derivative components
of convertible bonds:

At 1 January

Addition through issuance
of convertible bonds

Changes in fair value
recognised in profit or
loss during the year

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December

TRBREFITETARS :

R—A—H8
BERBEITAHRRESRNN

FERR BRI A TES

[E 5 A
RT+—A=+—H

AT{EHE ()

(i)

UATEFENEREENEE (F)

FRAF=RLOFEFENER (8
F=RAFEFELHROMAZSH T

2015 2014
- —FmE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥ETT

4,950 =

11,190 -
4,841 -

20,981 =
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)  Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair
value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values at 31 December
2015 except for the following financial
instruments, for which their carrying
amounts and fair value and the level of
fair value hierarchy are disclosed below:

Liabilities &
Secured notes (Note ()~ BHIFELE (i ()
Convertible bonds mRES
- liability components —BEEs (BiE()
(Note (i)
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() AFEFEGER)

(i) WERAFEIENESREEREEN
AFEE

RZZE—RAFE+-_A=+—H8H ' x&H
TR AR AR SR T AR®E
BHEAFETESEAZE  HUT2
ATERI EREAELRAFERAF

[EEFSES G I
2015 2014
—E-1% “F-QE
Fair value Fair value
Carrying measurements Carrying  measurements
amount at 31 December amount  at 31 December
at31  categorised at 31 categorised
December into Level 3 December into Level 3
B+=R ®+=A

RtZA  =t-H2% RtZA  =t—A%%
St-B REZHRM  =T-RH AF=4N
BEE — AVEHE BEE  AVERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR  ARBTR = ARETR  ARETR

128,271 122,262 = =

59,428 56,142 = =
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31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)  Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities carried at other than fair
value (continued)

Note (i): Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurements

Secured notes and convertible bonds-
liability components

The fair values are estimated as being
the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest
rates for similar financial instruments.

The Group used the risk free interest
rate with reference to the Hong Kong
government bonds and treasury bills
as of 31 December 2015 plus credit
spread of comparable notes with similar
credit rating, coupons and maturities
to discount the secured notes and the
liability components of the convertible
bonds as of 31 December 2015. The
interest rates used are as follows:

Secured notes BHEBRE
Convertible bonds AR &S

— liability components

32 COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments
At 31 December 2015, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for
in the consolidated financial statements were
summarised as follows:

B TSR 2R Y T

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B BB » AARESR)

31 PREAREEREMIANATEGE)

(e)
—BESS
32 RiE

(a)

Commitments in respect of LIS I B R IR

plant and machinery
— Contracted for — B A4

DFEE (&)

(i) WERAFEIENESREEREEN
AF{E (&)

Wizt () - E=RAFlEE B AL ERAM R &

BAESE

AZE

FRAFFEER TR ES — R IEE D

R FEZEBU /T A9 E 7715 5%
BB AR KT 2 e BT EETTIAAT °

FEESEBHBITES REEHF=
TR+ =+ —BHmERFIE
M AT - BE 8 R F A
BEHEEENEEEE HR-F—7
EA=F=+—AEHRIEERTSEE
BB EEAITH - FIR AR FIE 20
T

2015 2014
—F-IF —THF
19.57% -
21.57% =

RZZ—RF+ZA=1+—H8  KREEHE
WRBEHNAKERENEARAZENT

2015 2014
i —T-IF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR¥ETT

- 106
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32 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 32 &R (E)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KEHEEEE
At 31 December 2015, the total future R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—8 BRETTHH
minimum lease payments under non- RETHEEMIARZEBSAZENT :
cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Within 1 year 1R 5,940 107
After 1 year but within 5 years 1518 1B5FR 2,024 -
After 5 years 5% 1& 47 =
8,011 107
The Group leases certain office premises under AEEREBELCEHERBETHAYME - ZZHE
operating leases. None of the leases includes BAaEAES
contingent rentals.
33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 33. EXEBAIRS
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in MRZEMBMEMERENLERIN - BAREEF] L
these financial statements, the material related party HER@ETRXS0T °
transactions entered into by the Group during the
year are set out below.
(a) Transactions with the equity shareholders (a) EERRFERBRETHRS
of the Company
Details of guarantees provided by the equity RAFERRREAN S BB RRE R AR
shareholder of the Company for the Group’s EHRERNERE A AR RSN B
secured notes and convertible bonds and AR BEERKIE25 » 26 &2 30 °

acquisition of a subsidiary from the equity
shareholder of the Company are set out in
Notes 25, 26 and 30.
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33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the directors of the
Company as disclosed in Note 10 and certain
of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
Note 11, is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS ER R M 5

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (& BA &SN - UAREFIR)

33. EXBABAIXRS (&)

(b) BIREZEASEHM
AREEAESHFM(BIENEFI10FMEELN T
AABEEMSBNMAE 1 TRESE TREH
BiES ) 1T ¢

2015 2014
—EB-hfF —E-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Short-term employee benefits 42 HA(E B &5 4,618 3,934
Contributions to defined M A TE R RGR RET IR
contribution retirement plans 118 68
Equity-settled share-based B R D RN EIR
payment expenses in respect R EEUARG A
of share award scheme B2 MR
(Note 27) (MfzE27) 1,772 -
6,508 4,002

SESERBERAT —S- AEEEHS @
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34 THE COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF 34 ALQTHEEMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2015 2014
—F-nf —F-mF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BizE ARETT ARETT
(restated)
(&&E7)
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHE R RIHIRE 17 161,651 336,237
Loans to a subsidiary ERTHEAR 311,693 -
473,344 336,237
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B~ B IR 27,918 -
Cash and cash equivalents Be MReEEER 28,053 623
55,971 623
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE I BB A =) RIE 40,996 29,982
Other payables H b 3kIE 17,034 13,838
58,030 43,820
Net current liabilities REAEFHE (2,059) (43,197)
Total assets less current liabilities AEERGEERE 471,285 293,040
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Secured notes BIEAEE 25 128,271 =
Convertible bonds Al E S 26 80,409 =
208,680 -
NET ASSETS BEE 262,605 293,040
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR #E 29
Share capital &N 98,557 53,560
Reserves it 164,048 239,480
TOTAL EQUITY R 262,605 293,040

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 31 March 2016.

Cheng Jerome
Director (Chairman)

Yuan Weitao
Director

Cheng Jerome

EE(ZE)
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36

37

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

In 2015, the Group has committed to and
commenced a sale plan of the Kaifeng Changfeng
Group. On 2 February 2016, the Company, through
a wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a conditional
agreement with a third party in respect of the
disposal of the entire equity interests in Kaifeng
Changfeng and the assignment of certain of the
Group’s receivables due from the Kaifeng Changfeng
Group at a cash consideration of RMB4,000.

The above transaction is subject to the Company
shareholders’ approval in an extraordinary general
meeting to be held on 22 April 2016. The Group is in
the process in assessing the financial impact of the
above transaction, which will be determined upon
completion of the transaction.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the correction of prior year’s errors
and certain adjustments made to conform to current
year’s presentation, certain comparative figures have
been adjusted. Further details of these corrections
are disclosed in Note 4.

In addition, in view of the acquisition of a new
line of business as mentioned in Note 30, certain
information reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment
has been changed for the year ended 31 December
2015. Accordingly, certain comparative figures
have been adjusted to conform to current year’s
presentation. Further details are set out in Note 5(b).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the
immediate and ultimate holding company of the
Company at 31 December 2015 to be Century
Investment, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 38
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a few new standards and
amendments to standards which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

BE-_ZE-AF+-A=t+—-BLFECHMHE
g*i?&ﬂ@%ﬁﬂi’%ﬁu C BB RERBHNEES

BEAMBHRERNEBMAL  HESMLSE
BHREBE_FT-—AF+T-_A=1T—BLEFEHK
ERHE TR R R EANERT - BRI Rk
A ﬁgﬂiﬁé% c ZEFRABE T A EENEEAFRA
HZER o

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
AR5 B Bigk 2 1& IR HY
FREHMER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
BB BHEER —F— —FF T YFH FREAHE

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

BB GHERIF 165 REBETERE 3858 (BFIA) -
B REHAER A2 EE

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28,
Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception

1 January 2016
—E—RF—H—H

1 January 2016
—F—XRF—H—H

1 January 2016

FREPHMEERNE0 - EEPHREENE 1257 R EFB S ER —F—R"F—-H—H

F 285 (BFIAN) - REER : BAGAEAKAIVIINER

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

FRGRTERE 1R (BRTA) - KFAE

Amendments to HKAS 7, Disclosure initiative

BFREHERE TR (BRIAX) - KFAE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

— Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
EEGTERIE 1258 (BRIAR) - ArFH

— AR IR IR iR AR AL B TR E

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BRUMBHRELRFE55 - KEEFLEXZUA

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BBV EWELERNEN - 2F T A

HKFRS 16, Leases
BAMBHREERFE 165 HE
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2015 (CONTINUED)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new
standards and amendments to standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that except for HKFRS 15,
Revenue from contracts with customers, for which
the Group is still under the process in assessing
the impact of their application, the adoption of the
remaining new standards and amendments to
standards is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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5-Year Financial Summary

AEPBRE

RESULTS

Revenue

Profit (loss) before taxation
Income tax (expense) credit

Profit (loss) for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

ES

WA

BT A5 7
(E18)

PRSHL (FISD) R

FRm A (&R )

BEERAE

BERE
BEME

BEME

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1T—HILEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
22— =T ZT—=F ZZ=ZNmHF ZET-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRE ARETRTE ARETT AR¥TR
(restated)
(5g&E7)

920,681 503,841 429,795 336,928 170,355
81,421 (459,635) (227,410) (409,202) (631,217)
(21,775) (1,103) (645) 270 16,264
59,646 (460,738) (228,055) (408,932) (614,953)

At 31 December
Rt+t=—A=+—8H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
2% =ZZT——fF ZT—=F ZZ=ZNmHFE ZET-HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETRTE ARETT ARETT AR¥TR
(restated)
(FE7)
2.305,591 1,764,871 1,581,581 1,017,913 776,118
(743,011) (664,656) (709,421) (584,685) (704,027)
1,562,580 1,100,215 872,160 433,228 72,091
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